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NOVEVIBER 112

a The 'Conference for Promoting informatisation of Enterprises”, jointly
organised by the State Economic & Trade Commission and the Ministry of
Information Industry, was held at Legend’s Beijing headquarters. Vice
Premier Wu Bangguo, Minister Wu Jichuan of Ministry of Information
Industry, and leaders of 100 large Chinese enterprises visited Legend's
Beijing headquarters and shared Legend’s experiences in developing its
management information system

Roll out of Home Cyber Port series, including Supremia and Premia PCs
and 7 new digital peripherals
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= Chairman Liu Chuanzhi selected by US magazine Time as one of the
world’s 25 most influential business leaders
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* 55% equ1ty interest in Techwise Circuits was
sold to Kingboard, which became Techwise
Circuits’ major shareholder
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FEBRJARY 2

= Joint venture with Xoceco was announced, along with a strategic
alliance with Texas Instruments, marking Legend’s formal entry into the
mobile handset business
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VARCH 3E
= Investment in Han to jointly develop IT management consultancy
business in China
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APRIL 4.3
= Announced joint venture with Al Software to
develop IT services for the insurance industry
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Significant Events = Fi&

2001

APRIL 45
= Yang Yuanging appointed as President and CEQ of Legend Group Limited

c BLEERIRMEREARANERLERENTE

~ = Spin-off of Digital China and its
successful listing on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong

= Joint venture with AOL was
announced to develop consumer
interactive service business in China
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JULY 7R

= President Yang Yuanging selected by US magazine BusinessWeek as one
of its “Stars of Asia”

Cooperation agreement signed with the world’s six largest liquid crystal
display (LCD) monitor manufacturers, for the joint promotion of LCD
computers in China

“Legend Application Solution Centre” set up with Intel in Beijing,
promoting server applications based on the Intel architecture
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AUGUST 85

= Strategic agreement reached with Siemens for the joint development of
the first batch of wireless handheld devices in the PRC based on 2.5
generation communication technology (GPRS)
HEREMFLREITEERIBERNS RS ERE - KEREFEE
—HERERNE 2.5 AR GPRS NELFHR

SERTEMBER 93
G = Announced to set up a joint venture
4 with Gigabyte to develop contract
manufacturing business
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Financial Righlights = B =

Operating Results
Turnover

Actual

Proforma

Earnings before interest, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation expenses
Actual
Proforma

Profit attributable to shareholders
Actual
Proforma and before restatement

Financial Position
Total tangible assets
Actual
Proforma

Cash reserves
Actual
Proforma

Total borrowings
Actual
Proforma

Shareholders’ fund
Actual / Proforma

Financial Ratio

Return on tangible assets (%)
Actual
Proforma and before restatement

Interest cover (times)
Actual
Proforma and before restatement

Current ratio (times)

Others

Dividends (HK cents)
Interim dividend
Proposed final dividend

Earnings per share - basic (HK cents)
Actual
Proforma and before restatement
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20,853 27,219 23.39% |
19,267 18,665 323%
|
1,009 971 3.91% ‘
973 740 31.49% |
1,045 114 816.67% |
1,026 718 42.90% |
5,692 8,028 (29.10)%
5,692 6,350 (1036)%
|
2,441 2,634 (7.33)%
2,441 2,383 2.43%
- 832 N/A
- 19 N/A
3,682 3,883 (5.18)%
24.6 28 778.57%
30.3 23.9 26.78%
93.1 6.1 1426%
635.7 424 1399%
2.2 1.7 2941% |
i
15 1.1 36.36%
3.6 2.4 50.00% |
13.86 1.52 811.84% |
13.61 3.63 4133% |
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I 52.31%
| 38.41%
|
\ 1.12%
10853 19,267 i
| 17,450 18.655 ‘ 7.96%
| 163 1,00 |
‘ | / 0.20%
i 6,914 |
93 00 01 02

LEGEND ANNUAL REPORT 2001002 HEER




N U UQUUD DU UL 2 KW SIINSTTS & /Ml [ =

nE=x x5

Liv Chuanzhi chairman

ﬁ n the back of a global economic downturn and
U subsequent IT market slowdown, even China’s

experiencing reduced levels of growth in 2001. After several

booming IT market was adversely affected,

years of seeing the market develop at high speed, in which the
Group experienced surging market share and consistently
excellent financial results, Legend last year had to face a wholly
different business environment which presented the new
management team with major challenges. Despite the
unfavourable environment, the team approached their task with
confidence, exploiting the difficult conditions by using them as
a spur to readjust and reform the Group’s strategies for survival
and growth. After a careful analysis of market conditions, the
management team put into practice a number of measures
designed to stabilise the market and sustain Legend’s general
economic health in the face of difficult conditions. These
measures were successful in improving both the Group’s gross
profit and net profit margins, and maintaining continuous

growth in profits.
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> Exposure to adverse conditions over the past vear has honed the skils of

Legend’s new management team and led to satisfactory results ...

EBE—F BENEEELETRENER B TS AMER
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Legend’s healthy growth has partly come about due to its enhanced
profile as a services and technologies provider and its increasing
levels of informatisation over the past year, a repositioning which
has set the Group up for new and wide-ranging anticipated future
growth. Alongside this, the development of new business areas
has reaped early rewards, beside providing Legend with valuable
experience in strategic investment and the handling of international

cocperative endeavours.

| believe economic development occurs in cycles, presenting a
continuing round of opportunities and challenges. Ultimately, an
enterprise’s vitality and achievement rests upon the intelligence and
the sheer drive of its leaders, honed by exposure to adversity. The
past year has brought its share of the latter, and | am highly encouraged
to see that Legend’s management, led by Yang Yuanging, has drawn
on these experiences to grow further into a mature, proactive and
resilient team. The clear abilities of the management in evaluating
difficult situations and learning from experience, and their collective
passion in seeking changes and innovations prove that they are indeed

Legend’s most valuable assets to investors.

Liw Urwam 24,

Liu Chuanzhi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23rd May 2002
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You became Legend’s CEO in 2001. How
would you assess Legend’s performance
over the past year?

The global IT industry was seriously affected by the economic downturn of
2001 and the market slowdown that followed, while China'’s IT market, after
several years of rapid growth, has also moved into a period of adjustment
following the burst of the Internet bubble two years ago. Despite such an
unpromising environment, Legend still managed to expand its proforma turnover
by 3.2% compared with last year. While proforma net profit grew by 42.9%,
gross profit and net profit margins also improved. Given the Group's recent
major business restructuring and the on-going fluctuations of the China market,
these results are a remarkable testimony to the Group’s enterprise and
commitment during the past year.

The Group achieved much besides commendable financial results over
the year, not least the experience of learning to develop rapid
and positive reactions to market changes. After operating for
several years in a rapidly growing market, last year's
contrasting business environment prompted us to enhance
f’»sy f“‘,—} the efficiency of our operations, to improve measures for
~ 7 countering risk, and to strenghten our management
it capabilities.

1

0

2001 also saw impressive progress in the Group’s
transformation into a technology and service company. High
levels of investment were maintained both in research
and development ("R&D") and in services, despite the
need to reduce operating expenses. It is because
technology and services are earmarked
as areas of the Group's core
i\) competence which will drive new
growth in the future. Elsewhere,
2001 also saw Legend make
great strides in the
development of new
business areas.

2001 EREMRBECED
WE—F - BEEIEE
—FEBENRE?

2001 2L BERIERTSREHZIT
CEMEN—ENTE  PETRELE
TEEBFEERE  LERIMFNHE
BREARZBEEANTHEY BEFHN
MHEHET  BENEZLEBLTESF
BRET3.2%  BEEFERCEDT
42.9%  2EEEFERMINEHE RN
- EEREEELTETTERERKE
ERTFEMSHERREMLNERATIE
B AIARRZ A5 -

EE-F9  BfIBRETRESEMKE
ETEEENERNOBMER T RERE
MEENER  ERRfBE%F—EE
REZEROTHETHR  KETEE—F
BEECENEFREXRES  ARENE
B TEEMERE -

2001 FRMERARMERBEL S EHLR
BRAER - #AEATBERME - 20
AIFEUR T BEXH - EREMBHTER
BRRBITENEA - FEBUERTRR
BRABENRLRENRFOERE S -
BES 2001 BB EF EBERTARIE
ET—R$ -

Yang Yuanqing Fresident and CEO
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DD Legend has taken major steps towards service-oriented transformation

and technological innovation ...

BB MRS EAMXITRIF Bh TEEM —2 ..
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How exactly has Legend gone about
implementing its strategy of
transforming itself into a technology
and service company in 20077

In the first place, Legend has completed its transformation into a customer-
oriented business structure, allowing us to design, manufacture and deliver
products according to the different needs of specific customer groups, as well
as devising appropriate group-focused marketing strategies. The restructuring
has created a more open and market-oriented management ideology, which
has permeated through into Legend’s corporate culture generally, underpinning
the Group’s wider transformation into a technology and service company.

Legend's commitment to technology was evident with the launch in 2001 of a
variety of new breakthroughs in server technologies and products, with
proprietary intellectual property rights. A major milestone was the ranking of
the Group's server products amongst the world's top ten for the first time ever.
During the year, Legend initiated a partnership with Intel to set up the largest
application solution centre in Asia, and cooperated with IBM in rolling out new
fibre-optics storage products and solutions. A particular highlight was the launch
of "Wanguan Sureye”, a server management software application developed
by Legend. Demonstrating the Group’s mastery of core server technologies,

this software represents a strong foundation from which we expect to develop «

further high-end corporate IT products and services, particularly now that Legend
has established a R&D team dedicated to working on high-end server and back-
office technologies. Legend’s products in IT security and wireless technology
have also had a powerful impact amongst businesses.

An important factor in Legend’s transformation into a service company has
been the launch by our customer service centres and call centre of “One-Code
Service” and “Centralised Reporting System”, two initiatives which together
have enhanced the competitiveness of our core businesses. From 2001, a
reshaped business model has been adopted for handling our large clients,
with excellent and widespread results. This includes the establishment of new
service models in account management, e-commerce, configuration-to-order
and expertise services. “IT 1 for 1" also established its own service model for
small and medium enterprises ("SMEs"}, a model which effectively drives
product sales through the provision of services, and which will assist our
channel transformation in the future.
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What did Legend achieve in 2001 in
terms of developing new areas of
business, and how did it go about
doing this?

As part of its service and technology transformation, Legend explored and
developed a number of new business areas during 2001. The Group’s
investment brought returns of over HK$ 100 million, while at the same
time providing valuable experience in the planning of strategic investments
and the implementation of international business cooperation. Four major
developments can be mentioned:

{1) In cooperation with Xiamen Qverseas Chinese Electronics Company
Limited ("Xoceco”), Legend entered its newest IT business arena, the
mobile handset business. This move offers the Group a foundation for
implementing its development strategy of linking up different IT
terminals.

(2) Legend's investment in Han International Consulting Company Limited
("Han") was another milestone marking Legend’s transformation from
a hardware manufacturer to a technology and service provider. The
cooperative partnership with Han has given Legend a significant
competitive edge, experience and expertise in the IT service arena.

(3) Our cooperation with AOL has established a clear direction for the
development of Internet service provision. Once launched, the services
will, we believe, go a long way towards driving the development of
Internet business in China.

(4) Legend's contract manufacturing business has been greatly enhanced
by collaboration with Gigabyte Technology Company Limited
{“Gigabyte") and Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited (“Kingboard")
during the year.
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>D The team has demonstrated its abillity to react rapidly and positively to

market changes ...
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What do you consider Legend’s current
level of development from a historical
perspective?

The Legend of today exists in a period of major historical change. After ensuring
its survival in the 1980s by adopting a trading-oriented strategy, the Group has
over the past decade developed its own brand products, establishing the famous
“Legend” brand and achieving a scale comparable to that of a medium-sized
international enterprise. The Group's future mission is to make the name
“Legend” not simply synonymous with computers, but also immediately
associated with a wide variety of consumer IT products, high-end corporate IT
products, IT services and Internet services. Legend must now advance a further
step forward to position itself as a world-class enterprise, highly technologically
advanced and with versatile business interests across a range of IT areas.

Legend first began to implement its mid to long-term strategic planning in the
financial year 2001 / 02. Its target of becoming a "high-tech, service-oriented
and international Legend” has been firmly established in Legend’s six main
business areas, allowing for a full synergy between each that provides the basis
for the Group to proceed towards its dual goals of technological innovation
and service-oriented transformation.
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What Is the potential for developing
China’s IT market in the future? What
directions do you anticipate Legend

developing in?

The immediate future will see Legend continue its concentration on the China
market, while expanding into adjacent areas of the IT industry. The Group believes
that China’s IT market possesses formidable opportunities, particularly now that
the country has joined the WTO and won the right to host the Olympic Games.
The push towards enhancing business competitiveness through information
technology has created a significant surge in demand for IT services from both
companies and individuals. As China’s largest IT enterprise, Legend's development
potential is enormous.

In 2002, Legend will continue to move in the direction of service transformation
and technological innovation, and at the same time attempt to make major
steps forward in the development of new businesses. Within the hardware
business, we will be diversifying our computer terminal products, with emphasis
on mobile handsets, PDAs and digital products. As for back-office products,
Legend will be moving from the simple provision of servers towards offering a
full product line of high-end corporate IT products including high-end servers,
storage products and network security products.

Building on our established foundation of value-added services that drive product
sales, we expect to build up further [T service opportunities and focus on making
this area a strong growth driver for the Group, through our provision of Internet
services for consumers, one-stop “IT 1 for 1” services for SMEs, and professional
IT consultancy services for large corporate clients.

Legend will maintain its strategic commitment to technological enhancement,
proceeding from the development of product technology towards advances in
application technology and core technology. With our terminal products in mind,
we will be looking to develop key wireless technology applications enabling the
linkage of various terminals. We will also continue actively seeking breakthroughs
in back-office technologies such as super computing, storage and network
security technologies, while at the same time working to cultivate new ground
in the area of service technology, including software and application solutions,
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> The Group aspires to become a high-tech, senvice-oriented

international Legend ...
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What do you consider to be Legend’s
long-term goal, and how do you expect
to realise it?

Legend aspires to become a high-tech, service-oriented international enterprise
whose management standards reach an internationally recognised level,
comparable with those companies included in the prestigious Fortune 500 list.
This is not a goal that can be achieved without the employment of a philosophy
of strategic management. It goes without saying that a company must be initiated
on the basis of solid foundation management and business management, and |
believe that Legend currently occupies this position. My management team and |
are now reshaping our management vision to encompass the goals and ideals of
strategic management, a concept that means not simply having a clear vision of
Legend's future development and goals, but also possessing the business
intelligence and expertise to realise these goals. Strategic management skills also
involve being able to assess developments as time goes by, and adjust directions
as necessary to ensure the Group remains on track towards its long-term targets.

To enhance Legend’s value for shareholders, the Group has been committed to an
on-going process of reviewing and improving its corporate governance to ensure
high levels of transparency. This has gone hand in hand with a more general
dedication to implementing the highest corporate values, thus ensuring stable and
healthy development and good returns to shareholders in the long run.
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Business Review

Despite the past year's difficult operating environment, the Group still
managed to sustain healthy growth and make progress towards its
targets of technological innovation and service enhancement, at the
same time laying solid foundations for its new business initiatives. Overall,
Legend was highly successful in transforming itself into a customer-
oriented company, putting into place major organisational restructuring,
implementing its policy of technological innovation, and shifting its role
from that of a pure hardware company into an enterprise providing a
comprehensive range of services. These achievements provide an
exceptionally solid base for the Group’s long-term development. Legend’s
six major business areas also made good progress towards achieving

the targets set for them at the beginning of the year.

Corporate [T Business

Compared to 2000* when the year-on-year growth rate reached
46.5%, the turnover of China’s corporate computer market in 2001*
dropped 5.1% vyear on year. This demonstrates that the corporate
computer market in China was also affected by the slowdown in growth.
Despite this harsh environment, Legend’s corporate IT business turnover
still recorded a growth of 14% coupled with further improvements in

its gross profit margin and operating profit.

In August last year, the Group rolled out a new corporate computer
product series, “Kaitian”, "Qitian"and "Yangtian”, which offered
improved design, upgraded functionality and higher overall quality.
Catering for the network environment of corporate users, the “Kaitian”
series comes with tailor-made application solutions that obtained 34
national patents and gained the CCID’s "Technological Innovation
Award”. The series has been highly commended by corporate users.

2001 represents the period from April 2001 to March 2002
2000 represents the period from April 2000 to March 2001
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and eur flexible management tacties allew us te raplidly formulate proactive policies that in turm

trigger new market trends.
RSBELREES RNESENTSES  BENEEFE

il




VidiigyTliliTiil  VialUaalVit diid Alldiyala - B=E/&E WIad 2K 470

FE 8.4%
BM [ 14.2%
Bl SSER 4.8%
Dell [ _13.9%
e 2.9%
Tongfang 38%
Eb=) 1.5%

Source: IDC, May 2002 (after white box market size adjustments)
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Legend demonstrated its mastery of wireless network technology in the
past year by rolling out a notebook computer that utilises such
technology, the first time the Group has applied wireless technology to
notebook computer products. Tracking technological changes in the
market closely, Legend also launched the first notebook computer
equipped with an Intel Pentium 4-M chip in China in March this year, a
move reflecting the Group’s heavyweight R&D capabilities.

Legend achieved spectacular development in its server business, both in
terms of market position and technological development. For the October
to December 2001 quarter, Legend's servers ranked, for the first time,
amongst the world’s top ten best selling servers. March this year saw
the Group’s successful development of the cutting-edge core server
technology, “Wanquan Sureye Server Intellectual Monitoring
Management System”. A new “Legend Wanquan” server series based
on Intel's powerful and advanced Xeon CPU technology was also rolled
out, with the Group being the only Chinese manufacturer of the eight
global OEM strategic partners chosen by Intel to promote its Xeon CPUs.
Another breakthrough for Legend came in the area of high-end server
development, as it marked its entry into the high-end server market
with the launch of the iCluster1800 series. Last November also witnessed
the Group’s signing of a strategic OEM agreement on storage products
with IBM, which will lead to the joint development of storage
technologies and the product market.

Legend significantly enhanced its service provision for enterprises with
the careful positioning of its “IT 1 for 1" service scheme in 2000,
effectively stimulating the Group’s commercial computer product sales.
Through a series of partnerships with software developers in China,
Legend also provided a variety of solutions to SMEs, such as those dealing
with imports and exports, customs declaration, training, manufacturing
and design. To enhance the channel’s provision of value-added services,
Legend signed up 145 partners for its “IT 1 for 1" scheme and provided

them with versatile professional training.
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The Group also put extra efforts into promoting company informatisation.
Last year, the “Hand in Hand" project launched one-on-one promotions
for over a thousand SMEs. The Group also set up the “Legend Application
Solution Centre” in Beijing with Intel to promote the use of servers
based on the Intel architecture. The Centre provides customers with
numerous services such as porting, testing and tuning. Legend also
boosted its channel development with the establishment of a network
of 400 commercial specialty shops providing commercial IT products for
SMEs. Large clients now have the benefit of Legend's “Account Manager
System”, which allows customers to draw on Legend’s internal resource

support more easily.
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Consumer T Business

Internet frenzy in 2000 resulted in a period of exceptionally high growth in
China's home PC market, and a number of local electrical appliance
vendors actively expanding into the consumer IT business. With the burst
of the Internet bubble, however, the home PC market experienced major

adjustments in 2001%*, with total market value growing by just 0.7%

The Group’s consumer IT business recorded slight growth in turnover
compared with last year. In view of the market slowdown, the Group
put greater emphasis on stabilising its gross profit margin. Taking
advantage of the lower costs of computer components, Legend rolled
out Pentium 4 home computer products and home PCs bundled with
LCD monitors at very competitive prices. By enhancing the functionality
of its products, not only were sales boosted but the average selling

prices of products were maintained.

* 20017 represents the period from April 2001 to March 2002
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Legend maintained its reputation for product development by rolling
out a number of new, user-friendly products suited to the specific needs
of consumers in China. In November 2001, the Group launched its new
generation home PCs, the Home Cyber Port series “Supremia” and
“Premia”. These products incorporate devices for minimising noise, along
with new world-standard technologies for heat dispersal and data
security. Users have already indicated strong approval for the design

and quality of these new products.

The main emphasis on Legend’s channel development was in increasing
the number of its “Legend 1+1 Home PC Specialty Shop”. With these
outlets more than doubling in number, from last year's 260 to the current
570, the Group can now point to an extensive sales network formed by
its combination of 1+1 Specialty Shops, distributors and retail points.

IT Service Business

In financial year 2001/02, Legend entered the IT service business through
its acquisition of Han, a leading management consultancy and IT service
enterprise in China. With the value of this market expected to grow at
an annual rate of 50%, taking it from 2000's US$840 million to an
estimated US$6.48 billion in 2005, the acquisition of Han opens up

huge growth potential for the Group.
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis - EEBH R SH

China’s entry into the WTO will place added pressure on the already
urgent need for Chinese businesses to informatise in order to enhance
management efficiency and competitiveness, and demand for IT services
will increase exponentially as a result. Last November’s “Conference for
Promoting Informatisation of Enterprises”, jointly organised by the State
Economic & Trade Commission and the Ministry of Information Industry,
was held at Legend’s Beijing headquarters, and involved more than one
hundred business leaders from some of the country’s largest enterprises.
Legend was able to share its experiences of developing an efficient
management information system. Participants looked closely at Legend’s
achievements in informatisation, and further cooperation was solicited,
marking a very positive beginning for Legend's IT service provision. The
Group expects its provision of IT services to also facilitate sales of the
Group’s commercial computer products, taking advantage of the synergy
between these two business areas. As China currently lacks a mature
and established IT service enterprise, the Group’s involvement in this

business gives it much scope for successful growth.

Over the year, the Group’s IT service business was able to draw on
Legend's brand advantages, good customer relationship and abundant
capital. An example may be drawn from the area of IT consultancy,
where the Group spent HK$55 million cash on new share subscription
in Han, acquiring a 51% equity interest in Han’s enlarged share capital.
Han's services currently cover Business Process Reengineering (BPR),
Enterprise Resources Planning (ERP), Customer Relationship Management
(CRM), Application Service Provision {ASP) and the development and
application of core software. To date, Han has provided consultancy
services on IT transformation to over one hundred enterprises, and made
available IT training to some four hundred corporations. Legend’s
investment in Han will allow it to launch its IT service business at an

advanced level.
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Legend has also been active in developing industry-specific IT services.
In April 2002, the Group set up a joint venture ("JV") with Al Software
Company Limited (Al Software"”) to develop IT services for the insurance
industry. The agreement may involve funding of up to RMB23.33 million
from Legend, with Al Software on its part contributing IT solutions for
the insurance industry, along with related intellectual property rights
and professional technical staff. Principally engaged in developing
insurance-related software, the JV has already successfully developed
“Insurance Business Mzanagement” and “Insurance Agent Information
Management” systems, and its clients include many renowned insurance

companies in China.

Henched Device Business

In 2001, the sales of handheld devices in China grew 37% to reach
1.99 million units, a spectacular growth figure mainly due to China
consumers’ strong demand for consumer IT / communications products.
With the development of the application market for specific industries,

high-end pocket PCs became another area of rapid growth.

The Group has established more than 1,700 distribution and retail outlets
for its handheld devices, and has been active in enhancing the levels of
technology and quality of its products. During the year, two high-end
handheld devices, “Tianji 5000 and “Tianji 3000" pocket PCs, were
rotled out. These two products use the Microsoft Pocket PC operating
system, and include applications like Word and Excel along with a media
player and webpage browsing options. Recently, Legend gave customers
yet more options to choose amongst, with the launch of its “Tianji A68”
device incorporating new wireless technologies, and "Tianji XP100”, a

multi-media pocket PC.
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The Group continued to strengthen its capabilities in product development,
signing a strategic agreement in August last year with Siemens to cooperate
in the wireless Internet communications arena, leading to the joint
development of the first batch of wireless handheld products based on

GPRS in China. The prototype of the product has already been produced.
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Legend set up a number of alliances with other companies with the aim
of developing industry-specific handheld device application solutions
for information searching and data collection. Over fifty software
developers joined the programme, and are currently providing application
solutions for fields and institutions such as insurance, securities, the
army, the police, traffic management, medicine, tobacco retailing and
logistics management. The solutions developed for the police, and for

insurance industry and tobacco retailing are already in use by clients.

In view of the huge development potential within China‘s mobite handset
market, and the further opening of the value chain of this industry, the
Group declared its official entry into China’s mobile handset market in
the financial year 2001/02. In doing so, the Group also looked to take
advantage of the business opportunities arising from the merging of
data communication with vocal communication technologies. In 2001,
total sales of mobile handsets in China reached approximately 46.55
million units, Currently, there are about 145 million mobile handset

users in China, representing a penetration rate of 11.2%.

In February this year, Legend declared the formation of a JV with Xoceco.
Legend and Xoceco own 60% and 40% of equity interest respectively,
and the total investment cost is approximately RMB150 million. The
agreement will see Legend injecting RMB90 million in cash, while Xoceco
will supply RMB60O million, including fixed assets like mobile handset
production lines and other related equipment, R&D facilities, raw
materials and finished products, with the balance to be paid

in cash.
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With Xoceco possessing an established mobile handset enterprise, an
experienced team, strong R&D capabilities and various patents on mobile
handset technologies, the Group believes it represents a suitable partner
for developing the mobile handset business. Both companies share similar
corporate cultures and mutual development goals. The JV is currently
capable of manufacturing 500,000 mobile handset units annually, and
possesses a good distribution and service network. The Group expects

to roll out Legend brand mobile handsets in the second half of 2002.

Legend’s strategic alliance with Texas Instruments has allowed the Group
to make use of Texas Instruments’ wireless GSM/GPRS chipset technology
and micro-processors using OMAP application processors to enhance
its own Legend brand mobile handsets and new-generation handheld
devices. Both parties will be looking for opportunities to cooperate in
designing and developing short-distance wireless, LAN and other

communications products.

Internet Service Business

The number of Internet users in China has been climbing rapidly and
currently stands at some 33.7 million, with recent research (January
2002) placing the growth at 50% annually. Factors which once restricted
China’s Internet development, such as problems concerning bandwidth,

security, and channels for payment and delivery, were all improved in

2001, laying a solid foundation for Internet development.
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Legend is extremely confident about the potentialitieé of China’s Internet
service market. In June last year, the Group announced the establishment
of a IV with the renowned Internet Service Provider, AOL, to jointly
develop consumer interactive services in China. After smooth
preparations, the JV was established in November 2001, and is currently

in the process of developing a series of China-oriented products.

Conftract Manufacturing Business

The slowdown in the US and European computer markets led to sales of
Legend's QDI motherboards remaining similar to last year, at about 3.4 million
units. Though business growth was reined in by unfavourable external factors,
Legend continues to hold an optimistic view of contract manufacturing within
the China market, and over the past year proceeded to develop this business

area through a series of cooperative enterprises and JVs.

In September 2001, Legend set up a JV with Gigabyte to jointly develop
contract manufacturing business, with China as production base. Both
companies own 50% of equity interest, and contributed their respective
production facilities in Huiyang and Dongguan, Guangdong to the JV.

Total investment cost was about HK$250 million.

Legend’s printed circuit board (“PCB") business was enhanced when
the Group introduced Kingboard as the major shareholder of Techwise
Circuits Company Limited (“Techwise Circuits”) in January this year.
The Group sold a 55% equity interest to Kingboard for HK$230 million,
while maintaining a 30.5% interest in Techwise Circuits after the
transaction. Kingboard's experience in the laminates business will act

as a positive contribution to Techwise Circuits’ business development.
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Financial Review
This review is designed to highlight key financial and operating information

relating to the Group’s performance during the year ended 31st March 2002,

Consolidated Financial Results
The Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of HK$1,045
million for the year, compared to HK$114 million in 2001 (HK$860

million before prior year adjustments).

On 1st June 2001, the Group spun off Digital China Holdings Limited
("DCHL"). The proforma results were prepared as if the spin-off
had been completed as at 31st March 2000. The proforma profit
attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31st March 2002 was
HK$1,026 million compared with the HK$718 million in 2001 (before
prior year adjustments), representing a 42.9% or HK$308 million
increase. Even excluding the effect of interest income and gains on
disposal, the proforma earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation
and amortisation expenses (“EBITDA") of the Group still recorded a

32% or HK$233 million increase.

Results Summary
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2002 2001
HK$ million HK$ million |

BMEER EEEET
Profit attributable to shareholders AR P ) 1,045 | 14 |

Profit attributable to shareholders B R E(EEF T‘

(before prior year adjustments*) (E7IET) 1,045 | 860
Profit attributable to shareholders PRty i :
(proforma and before prior year adjustments) (BEREFAD 1,026 | 718 |
EBITDA BAES WA FEREHEN ‘ ;
(proforma and before prior year adjustments) ERRBERENED 973 740

* The prior year adjustments represent amortisation of goodwill (HK$581 million) and impairment loss of goodwi
EEBFIEE R0NEE ZEREE BB 81ET) REBRESEGES1.66(57) -
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2002 ‘ 2001

Contribution to | Contribution to ‘
Turnover operating profit Turnover  operating profit |
wxm BREM = 227 EFES |
HK$ million HKS$ million | HK$ million HK$ million |
(B%EHETR) (B®EET) (EMEET) (BEREBT) |
Corporate IT business DE T2 1 10,078 573 “ 8,873 39
Consumer IT business EEITER ! 7.401 234 7,368 304
Handheld device business FHREES ; 216 (19) ‘ 118 (32)
Contract manufacturing business ERBERR J 1,534 148 1,715 178
Internet service business ERERER “ 39 (37) 106 (96)
Others EAh | 1,586 22 9,040 168
Gains/(osses) on disposal of supsidiaries, HEMBRF
associated companies and e DERIRE
investment securities EH2IE S (BE) - 164 - M
Amortisation of goodwill HEBEHH - - - (581)
Impairment loss of goodwill EERESR - - - (166)
20,854 1,085 27,220 170

Total sales recorded a drop of 23% in 2002 compared to 2001, However,
once turnover of others (mainly DCHL business) is excluded, turnover

represents an increase of 3%.

Although the growth of China’s corporate IT market slowed down in
2001, Legend's corporate IT business achieved 14% and 45% growth

in turnover and operating profit respectively.

The consumer IT business recorded slight growth of 0.4% in turnover. In
view of the market slowdown, the Group put greater emphasis on stabilising
its gross profit margin which nevertheless dropped from 11.77% to

10.83%, explaining the decline in the consumer IT business contribution.

Sales in the handheld device business surged by 84% to HK$216

million.

The contract manufacturing business recorded a drop in both turnover
and contribution, mainly due to the sale of a 55% equity interest of the
PCB business by the Group to Kingboard in January 2002.
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Interest income
interest income decreased from HK$103 million to HK$67 million, due
to the use of some cash on hand for investment, and a substantial drop

in interest rates during the vyear.

Gain on Disposal
The Group recorded a total disposal gain of HK$164 million in the year.

In January 2002, Legend disposed of 55% of its equity interest in the
PCB business to Kingboard, recording a HK$116 million gain.

The remaining income mainly accrued from the JV with AOL and the

disposal of long-term investment securities.

Operaiing Zxpenses

Total operating expenses fell from HK$3,207 million in 2001 to
HK$1,917 million in 2002. As the 2002 results only cover two months
of expenses of DCHL compared to a full year in 2001, it is more
appropriate to compare the proforma operating expenses. Proforma
operating expenses of 2002 and 2001, excluding amortisation and
impairment loss of goodwill, are HK$1,805 million and HK$1,857 million
respectively. The Group would continue to keep the cost under stringent

control and improve its operating efficiencies.

Taxation

The Group’s effective tax rate for the year was 2.13% compared to the

2001 figure of 2.11% (excluding prior year adjustments, HK$581 million

amortisation of goodwill and HK$166 million impairment loss of
goodwill, which are tax non-deductible items). The Group will continue

to adopt the most effective tax planning arrangements.
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Capital Expenditure

At year end, fixed assets and construction in progress amounted to
HK$8S1 million compared to last year's HK$918 million, a decrease of
HK$27 million or 3%. This decrease arose largely because of the effects

of disposing subsidiaries and fixed assets during the year.

During the year, the Group invested HK$456 million (2001: HK$455
million) in fixed assets and construction in progress, mainly for building
construction and acquisition of office and R&D equipment in Beijing’s
Haiden District.

During the year, the Group also invested HK$251 million in
FM365.com Limited, a JV with AOL set up to develop the Internet service
business in China.

For the coming year, the Group budgeted to use approximately HK$ 1 billion
in capital expenditure. 40% of which is to be used in enhancing the
development of new businesses, including handheld device business,
wireless technologies, server and IT services, etc. 20% of which is to be
used in R&D, 8% to 10% to be used in developing management
information systems for the Group and the remaining to be used in

general aspects.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
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Cash and bank balance and cash flow B & - RTEHEREFRR [ 2002 2001
i HK$ million HK$ million |
BAEEER BEEEET |
Cash generated from / (used in): BemA/ (BR) |
Operating activities EEEE 809 771 |
Returns on investment and servicing of finance READBLRREER (239) 147y
Taxation Fi1E (22) %)
Investing activities REEH (733) (790)
Financing activities mEEE ! 3) ! 772
Net cash (outflow) / inflow ERS CRE),RA ‘r (188) R 597
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes BREH EE | (5) M
Cash and cash equivalents |
at the beginning of the year FYHReRERRE . 2834 2,038 |
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRReREFERRE 2,441 2,634 |
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The Group maintained a very liquid position, with HK$2.4 billion cash
on hand at year end. The Group had a steady inflow of cash from its

operating activities.

The increase in cash outflow from returns on investment and servicing
of finance was due to higher dividends being paid, and less interest

income being earned.

Cash used in investing activities included the capital expenditure made
for fixed assets and investments during the year, and net off the sale
proceeds from the disposal of investments in the year. The sale proceeds
arising from the disposal of the 55% equity interest in PCB business in
January 2002 was HK$223 miliion.

Cash accumulated from financing activities dropped substantially, as
new bank loans in 2001 were borrowed by DCHL, which was then spun
off in June 2001.

There are no assets held under finance lease as at the year end
(2001: nil).

Borrowing Facilities and Capital Resources

Although the Group has consistently maintained a very liquid position,
credit facilities have nevertheless been put in place for contingency
purposes. As at 31st March 2002, the Group’s total available credit
facilities amounted to HK$2,485 million (2001: HK$4,070 million), of
which HK$850 million was in trade line, HK$457 million was in short
term and revolving money market facilities, and HK$1,078 miflion was
in foreign exchange contracts. Available borrowing facilities dropped
compared to 2001 because some of these facilities were granted to
DCHL directly upon its spin-off in June 2001. As at 31st March 2002,
the facility drawn down was HK$363 million in trade lines and HK$56

million in foreign exchange contracts used.
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Contingent Liabilities end Cff-Balance Sheet
Fimencial Instruments

The Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts and currency swaps
to manage its foreign currency exposure, with the objective of minimising
the impact of exchange rate fluctuation on earnings. Foreign currency
exposures are mainly in trade receivables from European business. The
Group's policy is to hedge normal trade transactions, with speculation
strictly prohibited. As at 31st March 2002, the Group had total
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts and currency swaps

amounting to HK$56 million.

The Group had no other material contingent liabilities as at 31st
March 2002 (20071: nil}.

Zmpioyees
The total number of employees dropped from 12,070 at the beginning
of the year to 7,230 at the end of the year mainly due to the spin-off of
DCHL in the first quarter and the disposal of two subsidiaries in the
fourth quarter. As a result, total staff costs fell from HK$836 million to
HK$675 million.

Legend has implemented a remuneration policy, a discretionary bonus
programme and a share option scheme for employees, in which benefits
are determined according to the performance of the Group and individual
employees. The Group also provides benefits such as in-house and
external training courses, insurance and medical benefits. These policies

are reviewed regularly to ensure they remain competitive and appropriate.
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Future Prospects

Although the Group’s management expects the IT market in China to
continue to be pressured by external factors in 2002, it is convinced of
the market’s future development potential. A number of factors lie behind
this conviction, including China’s computer penetration rate, far lower
than the US and Europe, the country’s annual 7% GDP growth rate,
which is leading to a rapid rise in living standards, the government’s
active promotion of informatisation in institutions and business
enterprises, the needs of local enterprises for computerisation and China’s

successful bid for the 2008 Olympic Games.

Over the next few years, Legend will maintain its focus on the China
market, along with its development strategy of transformation into an
innovative service and technology company. The Group plans to both
enhance its value-added services to drive product sales, and expand its
service business to make it a profit driver. Regarding technological
innovation, it will increase its investment in R&D in order to enhance its
R&D capabilities in product and application development. The major
strategies of the Group’s core businesses to be implemented in the

coming year are discussed below.

Corporate [T Business

China’s commercial computer market is set to develop rapidly in 2002,
with market sales of commercial desktop PCs, notebook computers
and servers expected to show a healthy growth. The Chinese Government
has been actively promoting informatisation, launching its
“e-government”, “School Link”, and “Golden Series” projects, all of
which have encouraged Chinese enterprises to accelerate informatisation
to enhance their competitiveness and prepare for the challenges brought

by China’s accession to WTC.
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The Group has two major strategies for its corporate IT business. The
first is to develop a comprehensive series of high-end corporate IT
products which will provide corporate clients with high value cutting-
edge products. The second involves developing application solutions
and services for specific industries that can provide customers with total
solutions that include products, applications and services. In planning
product development for corporate IT business, Legend will focus on
servers, high-end servers and storage devices. R&D investment will see
the Group emphasising component and system testing technologies,
system management software and storage systems, all of which
provide unified solutions to corporate users. In line with the high value
corporate clients place on solutions provision, Legend will leverage its
“IT 1 for 1" services to formulate application solutions for education,
e-government and SME management, thus expanding the Group’s

already profitable position as a solution provider.

The Group also plans to upgrade its distribution channels to inaugurate
channels that offer both products and value-added services. By providing
local customers with services in logistics, applications consultancy,
systems integration, solutions implementation, and operational
maintenance, the channels will themselves become essential and
integrated features of local IT environment. Other changes to be pursued
by the Group with the aim of providing better services to clients include
developing new service models for large customers, configuration-to-

order production and supply chain management.
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Consumer IT Business

The Group expects China’s home PC market to sustain stable growth in
2002. Big cities are now beginning to see a rise in second-time purchase,
while growth in home PC sales in small and medium cities has become
even more pronounced. The Group believes that application PCs will
continue to provide the core of home PC sales, while the increasing
popularity of digital products is another factor expected to drive demand

for home PCs.
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The Group will be strengthening its R&D capabilities this year with the
aim of developing more home PC product applications, so providing
buyers with added value and breaking the bottleneck of home computer
applications. To satisfy customers’ requirement for special devices, Legend
will begin to provide configuration-to-order services through its “Legend
1+1 Home PC Specialty Shops”. Digital home products will be another
area of its consumer T business to be actively promoted in 2002. Legend’s
digital products presently include digital printers, digital cameras, and
MP3 players. The Group intends to expand and develop further

applications for photography, music, video and computer education.

Since their establishment two years ago, “Legend 1+1 Home PC Specialty
Shops” have become the major sales channels for the Group’s consumer
IT products. This network will be expanded in the future, with the target
of having 1,000 specialty chain stores, selling not only computers but

also a wide variety of IT products and services.

IT Service Business

Legend expects to focus on the needs of enterprises and specific
industries when it comes to developing its IT service business. Placing
weight on areas such as IT consultancy, the development and
implementation of applications, systems integration and outsourcing,

the Group expects to see a stable development in its range of IT services.
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To speed up expansion of its IT services, the Group expects to cooperate
widely with both local and international companies, and set up alliances
with systems integrators, software developers, internet Service Providers
and consulting firms. Legend also plans to leverage its powerful brand
name, strong customer relationship and abundant capital to strengthen
its position in the IT service business market. The Group will also
emphasise on enhancing its managerial capabilities to develop service
business. Besides, to ensure a high quality managerial environment which
can attract new talents, the Group will devote efforts to improving its

internal management systems.

Hardheld Device Business

Sales of handheld devices in China are estimated to grow at a 25%
compound annual growth rate between 2001 and 2006. The market
focus will be on customised PDAs, with different niche markets of pocket

PCs expected to develop according to the needs of different industries.

The Group will continue to consolidate its core technologies for handheld
devices, with expected heavy investment in wireless products that will
create a comprehensive wireless product line with associated
applications. For the pocket PC market, we will target at the development
of application solutions for enterprises, including tobacco retailing, the
police and insurance industry. Legend will also launch PDA products
tailored for consumers, enterprises, professionals and students, and set

up distribution channels for these market segments.

China’s mobile handset market is estimated to grow by 29% in 2002,
with sales of 70 million units. With the opening of the value chain of
the mobile handset industry, Legend will focus on the technology
development, branding and marketing as well as the distribution

segments of the value chain.
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By applying the extensive and successful management experience of its
computer operations to the newly acquired maobile handset business,
Legend expects to see rapid and dynamic growth. The first crucial step
will be to establish Legend’s brand image in the mobile handset market,
a move ready for implementation in the second half of 2002 with the
rolling out of several new mobile handsets combining top quality with
high-tech features and trend-setting designs. These phones will be
marketed through extensive advertising campaigns and made available
through a wide range of sales channels. Further research resources will be
dedicated to the Group’s mobile handset business, to ensure even more

attractive products and consequent enhancement in competitiveness.

In conclusion, Legend's management views the challenges that will invariably
arise in the coming year as vital stepping stones leading to substantial long-
term achievements. With full confidence in Legend's business abilities and

the future growth potential of China’s IT market, we believe the Group will

continue to bring good returns to its shareholders and investors.
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The slowdown of the IT market and the unsatisfactory performance of
a number of international IT enterprises over the past year combined to
weaken investors’ confidence in the IT market and increase their caution
when it came to investing in IT enterprises. In the light of this, Legend
committed itself to strengthening communication with its investors by

providing regular updates on the Group’s latest business development.

With the financial year 2001/02 came a number of major changes
within Legend. After spinning off DCHL, the Group proceeded to
announce its new customer-oriented strategy, promoting the concept
of service and technology innovation. At the same time, the Group
became involved in a series of new business development, expanding
into adjacent fields including interactive consumer services, mobile
handsets, and IT consultancy. The Group has placed great emphasis
on explaining these new moves and strategies to investors over the
last year, providing them with relevant information on the market
situation and potential, and promptly updating the progress. Additional
information provided to investors has included information on the
Group’s strategic investments, on the launch of new products, services

and application solutions, and on the latest R&D results.

Legend continued to maintain close relationship with investors in
Hong Kong and around the world. During the year, the Group
participated in 12 investor conferences organised by well-known
securities houses, 3 Hong Kong and 3 international roadshows, 23
telephone conferences, 335 investor company interviews and 69 plant
visits. Noting the increasing interest amongst investors in observing
Legend’s Beijing facilities at first hand, the Group opened its PC
manufacturing facilities, automated warehouse, call centre and
“Legend 1+1 Home PC Specialty Shops” for visits. Amongst the
plant visits organised during the year, 49 tours were arranged to our
Beijing facilities. Besides, the Group provided investors with
information on the latest news and development through both its
English website (http.//www.legendgro.com) and the well-known
Hong Kong financial website Quamnet (http://www.quamnet.com).
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The Enron incident in the US gave rise to a general concern amongst investors
over standards of corporate governance. The Group has in the past made
great efforts to strengthen its corporate governance, and enhance its
standards of management generally. Continuing along these lines, in the
coming year the Group will employ a consultancy firm to evaluate its
governance system and pinpoint possible areas for improvement, to further

enhance the Group’s corporate governance.

The Group received a number of accolades across the year regarding
both its standards of corporate governance and the quality of its investor
relations. In a survey conducted by Asiamoney in 2001, Legend occupied
second place amongst PRC companies in the”Overall Best Managed
Company” and "Best Corporate Governance” categories. [t also ranked
first in the areas of overall investor relations, access to senior management,
investor relations, financial management, treatment of minority
shareholders, annual report, and company website. In 2002, FinanceAsia
magazine ranked Legend first amongst PRC companies in the categories
"Best Managed Company”, “Company Most Committed to Corporate
Governance”, "Best Investor Relations”and “Strongest Commitment to
Enhancing Shareholder Value”, and second in the "Best Financial
Management” category.

Through a consultancy firm, a survey was conducted in March to
sample investors’ opinions regarding the Group's new strategies and
its general investor relations, with the results showing general levels
of approval amongst investors. The Group would like to thank investors
for their valuable input into the running of Legend, and will be looking
to further enhance investor relations and transparency in the light of
them. Should investors have any further comments or advice to offer,
they are cordially invited to contact Legend’s corporate

communications department anytime.
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China International
Capital Corporation

FEERERERDR
Jay Zhihong Li 54
jzli@cicc.com.cn
T:(852) 2872-2047
F. (852) 2872-2102

CLSA Ltd
ERRERARLE
Jerry Lu FEBEE
jerry.lu@clsa.com
T:(852) 2600-8618
F: (852) 2501-0903
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Core Pacific-Yamaichi
International (H.X.) Ltd

REL-BEREBARLA
Mona Chung %%
mona.chung@cpy.com.hk
T: (852) 2826-0008

F: (852) 2536-9916

Credit Suisse First Boston
EitEEFE-KTEEE)
Kirk Yang #5fE#8
kirk.yang@csfb.com

T: (852)2101-7182

F: (852) 2284-7182

CSC Securities (HK) Limited
BREBHEBERLAT
Kenneth Lau B2
kenneth_lau@e-capital.com.hk
T:(852) 2105-1162

F: (852) 2105-1196

Daiwa Institute of Research
RHEH

Kelvin Cheng #5538
kelvin.cheng@dir.com.hk

T: (852) 2848-4443

F: (852) 2845-2190

Dao Heng Securities Ltd
ETEZEROA

Pauline Lau BI%%
pauline.lau@guoco.com
T: (852) 2218-2862

F: (852) 2285-3160

DBS Vickers (Hong Kong) Ltd.
DBS BEE(HE)ERLHE

Lau Tak Hung, Eric Bligig
eric.lau@hk.dbsvickers.com
T:(852) 2863-9874

F:(852) 2521-1812

Deutsche Bank AG
BETERT

Victor Wong E#Z81
victor wong@db.com
T.(852) 2203-6208
F:(852) 2203-6921
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GK Goh Research Pte Lid
Jonathan Ng &EZ#
ng.jonathan@gkgoh.com.sg
T: (65) 6239-8650

F: (65) 6224-6906

ING Financial Markets
David Toh
david.toh@asia.ing.com
T: (886) 2-2734-7528
F: (886) 2-8772-1500

JP Morgan

BERKE

Johnny Chan %2
johnny.lk.chan@jpmorgan.com
T: (852) 2840-6422

F: (852) 2847-3324

Lehman Brothers
ESMBEBROERLF
Paul Meyer 18712
pmeyer@lehman.com

T: (886) 2-2545-7900 ext 503
F: (886) 2-2712-2097

Merrill Lynch
(Asia Pacific) Ltd

EMEL

Tien Yu Sieh #&4E
tienyu_sieh@hk.ml.com
T: (852) 2536-3025

F: (852) 2536-3428

Morgan Stanley

ER+AF

Viktor Ma FT&
viktor.ma@morganstanley.com
T: (852) 2848-5903

F: (852) 2537-1701

Nomura International
(Hong Kong) Limited

FREREBERLT
Theodore Teo R E#
theodore.teo@hk.nomura.com
T: (852) 2536-1240

F:(852) 2536-1820

Salomon Smith Barney
FREMER

Peh Chong Ghee B9
chong.ghee.peh@ssmb.com
T: (852) 2501-2748

F: (852) 2521-5350

SG Securities
ZERX(ER)ERLAA
Paul Snelgrove
paul.snelgrove@sgib.com
T: (852) 2166-4094
F:(852) 2166-4662

Standard & Poor's
Investment Services

BEEH

David So BR{RE
david_so@standardandpoors.com
T: (852) 2532-8066

F: (852) 2532-8001

UBS Warburg
IR

Lim Fung-Ee A&
fung-ee lim@ubsw.com
T:(852) 2971-8599

F: (852) 2971-8542

Worldsec Int'l Ltd
MAEBERARE
Christopher Cheung SRR %
ccheung@worldsec.com

T: (852) 2867-7289

F: (852) 2845-1655
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Report ov the Directors - =TS

The directors submit their report together with the audited
accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2002.

Change of English company name

The Company has changed its English name to Legend Group
Limited (formerly, Legend Holdings Limited) pursuant to a special
resolution of Extraordinary General Meeting held on 25th March
2002, with effect from 28th March 2002. The Chinese name of
the Company remains unchanged.
Principal business and geographical analysis of
operations

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the sale and manufacturing of Legend
brand personal computers and handheld device, the provision
of IT services and internet services, and contract manufacturing
business.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover, revenue and segment
information for the year by principal business and geographical
location is set out in Note 3 to the accounts.

Results and appropriations
The results for the year are set out in the consclidated profit and
loss account on page 64.

The state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 31st
March 2002 are set out in the balance sheets on pages €5 and
66.

The consolidated cash flows of the Group for the year are set
out in the statement on pages 67 and 68.
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Results and appropriations continued
The directors have declared and recommended the following
dividends in respect of the year ended 31st March 2002:

EORAIR &
EETRREBEE U THE_ ST F=R=+—
BLEFEZIRE

2001
Interim paid of 1.5 HK cents B - SiR1.53M

(2007: 1.1 HK cents) per share (ZEZ—F 1181 112,846 82,942
|
Special interim dividend BRI ERRE, - 808,538 |
Proposed final of 3.6 HK cents Zi‘%%ﬁigﬁ! - 3.6
(2001: 2.4 HK cents) per share —EE—F 1 24%80) 271,051 181,732 |
383,897 1,073,212 |

Reserves R

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during

the year are set out in Note 27 to the accounts.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$298,019 (2001: HK$1,392,000).

Tangible fixed assels
Details of the movements in tangible fixed assets of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in Note 13 to the

accounts.

Share cagita
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 26 to the accounts.

Distributable reserves

At 31st March 2002, the distributable reserve of the Company
available for distribution of proposed final dividend amounted
to HK$863,305,000 (2001: HK$1,368,118,000, as restated).
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Five-year financial summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 128.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities

During the year, the Company purchased 72,226,000 shares of
HK$0.025 each in the capital of the Company at prices ranging
from HK$2.575 to HK$4.225 per share on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange of Hong Kong”).
Such purchases involved a total cash outlay of approximately
HK$263,761,000 and were for the purpose of enhancing the
Company’s return on equity.

LFEMBHE
BEREVBFEAEE ZEREERECHESR
FE128E o

HE HERFEARAZELHES

FER - AREBEEEMERBFERLR ([EEEE
RS F)) BET72,226,000 FREEE0.0257T2
RRERG - BERAENTTES2.5757CE4.2257T
% 3R SRR 47596 263,761,0007T - BEARDE
EREADE ZRAER -

Aggregate

Number of consideration

shares  Highest price Lowest price paid (including

repurchased per share per share expenses)

= Tz AR ERE

WMonth/Year F6B/ A6 BRzZRHY BREEE ERBEE (BEEA)
; =K o
August 2001 —ZEE-F/\A 30,882,000 4.225 3.400 122,686 ”
i
September 2001 ZEE—FNA 19,422,000 3.375 2.575 57,123 \\
|
December 2001 —ET-F1+ZA 20,220,000 3.975 3.525 77,083 ‘
|
|
January 2002 ZET-F—R 1,702,000 4.050 3.975 6,869 }
72,226,000 263,761 }‘

The repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled and
accordingly, the issued share capital of the Company was reduced
by the nominal value thereof. The premium payable on repurchase
was charged against the retained earnings of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

EERZIRGERERITE - AR ZEETRE
EERMIRENE - BN 2 EBHEERRART]
ZIREE R HIR -

B DFTREES £ AOFHEEAKELAR
BEEE  HEXBOFLTZIALTES
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Report of the Directors = ZEEHRET

Share cptions

The existing share options were granted to employees, including
directors, of the Group under the Employee Share Option Scheme
adopted and approved by shareholders on 18th January 1994.
This scheme has been terminated on 26th April 2002. Despite
the fact that no further options may be granted thereunder, all
other provisions of this scheme will remain in force to govern
the exercise of all the options previously granted.

On 25th March 2002, an ordinary resolution approving the
adoption of new Share Option Scheme (2002 Scheme”) was
passed by shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting.
Details of 2002 Scheme are as follows:

(1) Purpose
The 2002 Scheme serves as a way of providing incentives to
and attracting qualified participants for better performance
of the Group by allowing them to share increases in the
value of the Company.

(2) Qualified participants
(i) (a) anyemployee or officer, executive or non-executive
director (or persons proposed to be appointed as
such) of the Group;

(b) any consultant, professional or other adviser to the
Group;

(¢} any director, executive and senior officer of any
associated company of the Company; and

{(d) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the
directors the beneficiary (or in case of discretionary
trust, the discretionary objects) of which include
any of the above-mentioned persons; and

(i) (a) any customer, supplier, agent, partner, distributor,
professional or other advisers of, or consultants or
contractors to, the Group; and

~(b) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the
directors the beneficiary (or in case of discretionary
trust, the discretionary objects) of which include
any of the above-mentioned persons.
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Share options continued

(3)

4

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares available for issue under
options which may be granted thereunder is 750,803,810,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of adoption of the 2002 Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each qualified participant
The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted to each qualified participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the shares then in issue.

Timing for exercise of options

In respect of any particular option, the board of directors
may in its absolute discretion determine the period within
which an option may be exercised provided that such period
must expire no later than 10 years from the date upon which
the option is deemed to be accepted by the grantee. Option
will then lapse to the extent not exercised during the option

period.

Acceptance of offers

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and
accepted when the duplicate offer letter comprising
acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee shall
have been received by the Company on or before the last
day for acceptance as set out in the offer letter.

Basis for determination of exercise price

The exercise price must be no less than the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares on the date of grant; (i) the
average of the closing prices of the shares for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.

Life of the scheme

The scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from 26th April 2002, the date on which it is deemed
to take effect in accordance with its terms.

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8

KR8 E LR
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B{ERDAZ R EITIRE10% °
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Share RGNS continued BIRRAS &

(9) Outstanding options (9) KRITHEHEBRE
Details of outstanding options over new shares of the RIEEEBRETERL  BRESMBRE
Company at the beginning and &t the end of the year which REMFRERERORHREZEBREFBY
have been granted under the Employee Share Option T

Scheme are as follows:

deiors
BE e beds ‘
Tpterg e A7 e 3 s |
Ty I g poikd

\
]

A i R in
R Siciees B 5

Diractors g%
WluChumhi  HEsst Co30W00 75000 - 25000 2876 382001 3182001 |
3082011 ‘
|
MivngYunang  BREEE - 600000 - - BUOMD 0T 164201 164201
1542011 §
S30W00 750000 - 25000 2876 3182001 3182001- ‘
0801
MshaXuseng  BEGE - 250000 : . 29000 4072 1642001 1642000 |
542011 |
S 1A00000 - - 1600000 287 318201 3182001 ‘
3082011 !
Continuous ROANEE 32,0000 - 200000 - S04 30100997 30101997 |
ontract 29.10.2007 v;
employees 34,352,000 COBT00 98000 00 408 812000 2612000
212010 ¢
130,084,000 SSEM0 246000 162000 4317 152001 1502001 |
1412011 \
- IEE000 - - BENM0 40 164201 1642001 |
542001 |
S T006000 174000 - 8000 2904 298201 2982001 h
282011 |
S ABMO GAIO0D  TEBOD  ISERD 287 380 3180 |
3082011 |

LEGEND ANNUAL REPORT 2001002 B85




Share options continued BB o7

{9) Outstanding options contnued (9) FITEREBRE #
No share options have been granted under the 2002 Scheme EZTTREHEBENE  HEBLEHE
since its adoption. PRAE -
Notes: otz
1. Inrespect of share options granted during the year, the closing prices of the 1. EEEERHELZIERE ROTEERSHEEZEEK
Zzi;e/_/ﬁ O/xged/’a{e/y before the dates on which the options were granted are R

Closing price of share immediately
before the date of grant
Date of grant #HAH ZEEHABAZRGUTHH

]

L

16.4.2001 E—F R E+RE 545
29.8.2001 —ENAZTAR 3.60 |
31.8.2001 ZEE-F/\f=+—H 370 |
2. Weighted average closing price of shares immediately before the date on 2. BEEEEEFTENERE  ROTEETEEEZH
which the options were exercised by Mr Liu Chuanzhiis HK$3.22. BT IO FE TR REE3.22TT -
3. Weighted average closing price of shares immediately before the date on 3 BB TR ERTENERE  REEEEITEBRZE
which the options were exercised by Mr Yang Yuanqing is HK$3.75. IR TIRAEN3. 75T
4. Weighted average closing price of shares immediately before the dates on 4. BRBEEEERFTITENERE ROTERTESHZ
which the options were exercised by continuous contract employees is BB FAG M T BB HES 14T -
HKS5.14.
5. No share options were cancelled during the year. 5 FEER - HEEIEERE -
(10) Valuation of share options (10) fE R 1L (E
The options granted are not recognised in the accounts until BECEREEZEETFERNTSREREE AR
they are exercised. The directors consider that it is not RoERDREMAZEMEZETHREEZS
appropriate to value the share options on the ground that ReeSEBEE 2818 NTEETUEERAE
certain crucial factors for such valuation are variables which BeiB(EE - IR BB ERSERIERY
cannot be reasonably determined at this stage. Any valuation BE AR IE FT R (T A1 Eiﬂx‘ﬁ - AR
of the share options based on speculative assumptions in BEMIREENRE Bt REEREBRE
respect of such variables would not be meaningful and the ZERITEE -

results thereof may be misleading to the shareholders. Thus,
it is more appropriate to disclose only the market price and
exercise price.

Subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associated MIGAR - HEEZEHIIEREE AR ‘
companies

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries, jointly 7?0»313 A=+—8 RREETZFZMHE

controlled entities and associated companies as at 31st March ﬂ? %\J BREED Tnﬂi’\%‘@ﬂ@%é g

2002 are set out in Notes 15, 16 and 17 to the accounts §E15 . 16&17 °
respectively.

Bank loans TER
Particulars of bank loans of the Group as at 31st March 2002 EC ET-EZA-1+—8 FEBZRITERGES
are set out in Note 24 to the accounts. AR BMIEE24 -
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Directors
The existing directors of the Company are:

Executive directors
Mr Liu Chuanzhi

Mr Yang Yuanging
Ms Ma Xuezheng

Non-executive director
Mr Zeng Maochao

Independent non-executive directors
Mr Wong Wai Ming
Prof Woo Chia-Wei

Mr Li Qin and Mr Guo Wei resigned from office of executive
directors of the Company on 30th May 2001.

Mr Zeng Maochao was redesignated as a non-executive director
on 30th May 2001.

In accordance with Articles 92 and 101 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr Liu Chuanzhi and Ms Ma Xuezheng retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Biographical details of directors znd senior marnagement
Executive directors

Mr Liu Chuanzhi, aged 58, is the Chairman of the Group. He
has been responsible for the strategic planning and management
of the Group since its establishment and has over 32 years of
experience in the computer field. He graduated in 1966 from
the Department of Radar Communications, Xian Military
Communications Engineering College of China. He received the
first prize of the Second National Technology Entrepreneurs Gold
Award in 1990. He was awarded Model of National Work Force
and Man of Reform in China, both in 1995, and Ten Most
Influential Men of the Commercial Sector in China in 1996. He
has been Vice Chairman of All-China Federation of Industry &
Commerce and a Representative of the Ninth National People’s
Congress of the PRC since 1997 and 1998 respectively. Mr Liu
was selected by Fortune magazine as one of the runners-up of
Asia’s Businessman of the year in 1999. He was also selected by
BusinessWeek magazine as one of the Stars of Asia for 2000. In
2001, he was selected by Time magazine as one of the Twenty-
five Most Influential Global Executives.
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Biographical details of directors and senior management
continued

Executive directors continved

Mr Yang Yuanging, aged 37, is the Vice Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer of the Group with responsibility for
the overall business and operation of the Group. He graduated
from the Department of Computer Science, University of Science
and Technology of China ("USTC") in 1989 with a Master degree.
He is also a member of National Youth Committees, a director
of China’s Entrepreneur Association, and a Professor of USTC,
He was awarded Ten Most Outstanding Youth of Beijing in 1998
and won the Medal of 5.4 Youth in China in 1999, which is the
highest honour given to youth by the Chinese government. He
was selected by BusinessV/eek magazine as one of the Stars of
Asia in the years of 1999 and 2001. Mr Yang is a non-executive
director of Beijing Ufsoft Co., Ltd, which is engaged in software
development and manufacturing.

Ms Ma Xuezheng, aged 49, is the Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of the Group. She is responsible for
strategic investment, finance and overseas business of the Group,
and overall direction of the regional headquarters in Hong Kong.
She graduated from Capital Normal University in 1976 with a
Bachelor of Arts degree. She has over 25 years of experience in
financial and executive management.

Mon-executive director

Mr Zeng Macchao, aged 69, is a non-executive director of the
Group. He graduated from the Department of Electrical
Engineering, Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 1957. He was the
Director and Professor of the Institute of Computing Technology
of the Chinese Academy of Sciences. He has over 45 years of
experience in the computer field. Mr Zeng is an executive director
of Digital China Holdings Limited, a former wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company spun-off from the Group for separate
listing on 1st June 2001.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr Wong Wai Ming, aged 44, is the Chief Executive Officer of
Global China Technology Group Limited and also the Deputy
Chairman of Sing Tao Holdings Limited. He is a chartered
accountant and has extensive knowledge and experience in
investment banking.
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Biographical details of directars end senior management
continued

Independent non-executive directors continued

Prof Woo Chia-Wei, aged 64, is the Senicr Advisor to The Shui
On Group. He is President Emeritus and University Professor
Emeritus of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
He serves on the HKSAR's Commission on Strategic Development,
Council of Advisors on Innovation and Technology and
Committee on Hong Kong-Mainland Technological Collaboration
{(which he chairs), and the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conferences.

Senior management

Mr Liu Jun, aged 33, is the Senior Vice President of the Group.
He is responsible for the consumer IT business and computer
sales. Mr Liu graduated in 1993 from the Department of
Automation, Tsinghua University with a Bachelor of Engineering
degree, and thereafter joined the Group. Mr Liu has attained
outstanding achievement in computer sales and has extensive
experience in computer business.

Mr Yu Bing, aged 36, is the Senior Vice President of the Group.
He is responsible for the IT service business. Mr Yu graduated in
1988 with a Bachelor of Science degree from the Department of
Automation, University of Science and Technology of Beijing.
He joined the Group in 1990 and has engaged in marketing and
sales for 5 years from 1996. He has extensive experience in sales
and marketing.

Mr Qiac Song, aged 34, is the Senior Vice President of the
Group. He is responsible for the corporate IT business as well as
major account and strategic alliance. Mr Qiao graduated in 1991
with a Bachelor of Engineering degree from the Department of
Computer Science and Technology, Tsinghua University. He joined
the Group in 1991 and has extensive experience in sales and
marketing, supply chain and procurement logistic management.

Ms Wang Xiaoyan, aged 40, is the Senior Vice President of the
Group. She is responsible for information technology
development as well as finance, commerce, administration and
logistics functions. Ms Wang graduated in 1988 with a Master
degree in Engineering from Beijing Institute of Technology. She
joined the Group in 1894 and has extensive experience in finance
and administration.
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Biographical details of directors and senior management
continued

Senior management continued

Mr He Zhigiang, aged 39, researcher, is the Senior Vice President
of the Group and the Managing Director of Legend Corporate
Research and Development. He is responsible for corporate
research and development, software design centre, industrial
design centre, PCBA design centre and product-chain
management. He graduated with a Master degree in Computer
Science from the Institute of Computing Technology of the
Chinese Academy of Sciences and has 16 years of experience in
the research and development of computer products. He joined
the Group in 1986.

Mir Liu Xiaolin, aged 39, is the Vice President of the Group. He
is responsible for the Internet service business. Mr Liu obtained
a Master degree from the Department of Computer Science and
Technology, Tsinghua University in 1992. He joined the Group in
1992 and has extensive experience in business development and

management.

Mr Liu Zhijun, aged 37, is the Vice President of the Group. He
is responsible for the handheld device and mobile handset
businesses. He graduated in 1989 with a Master degree in
Engineering Mechanics from Dalian University of Technology. He
engaged in computer marketing when joined the Group in 1989.
Since Mr Liu took charge of handheld device business in 2000,
he obtained extensive experience in researching, producing and
marketing concerned this field.

Mr Du Jianhua, aged 38, is the Vice President of the Group. He
is responsible for the overall management of China regional
headquarters and overseas branches. Mr Du obtained a Master
degree from Beijing Institute of Technology in 1988. He joined
the Group in 1989 and has extensive experience in regional

planning and management.

Ms Wang Xiaochun, aged 49, is the Vice President of the Group.
She is responsible for customer service and information. She
obtained her Master degree in Science at the Graduate School
of Chinese Academy of Sciences in 1981. She has over 16 years
of experience in management and administration. She joined
the Group in 1990.
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Biograighica! details of directors and senior management
continued

Senior management continved

Mr Lu Yan, aged 37, is the Vice President of the Group and is
responsible for handheld device business. Mr Lu graduated in
1989 with a Master degree in Engineering from Beijing Institute
of Technology and has ten years of experience in project R&D
and management. He joined the Group in 1992.

Mr Chen Shaopeng, aged 33, is the Vice President of the Group
and is responsible for the commercial desktop PC business. He
graduated from Beijing Institute of Light Industry with a Bachelor
degree in Computer Science and has ten years of experience in
PC business and management. He joined the Group in 1993.

Mr Cheung Wing Chung, Anders, aged 38, is the Vice
President of the Group and is responsible for strategic investment
projects management. He joined the Group in 1988 and holds a
MBA degree from Kellogg (Northwestern University) — Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. He has over 13 years of
experience in computer marketing.

Direclors’ service contracts

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or
its holding company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ interests in securities =

As at 31st March 2002, according to the register maintained RIBEZHE=ZA=+—8  BEE (ﬁ&gfﬂ"){
under section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) B ([ BESEG ) E208REFEZ T LM
Ordinance (the “SDI Ordinance”), the interests of each director ERAERE R ERE AR ROESIOT ¢

in shares of the Company or any associated corporations were

as follows:
Number of shares in the Company
REQRZREHE
Beisonal Family Tetal) }
IEEHESE intere i ¢
Name of clirector HAER 5
Mr Liu Chuanzhi WEExRE 10,010,000 256,000 10,266,000 :
Mr Zeng Maochao TIRELE 4,080,000 - 4,080,000 |
Mr Yang Yuanging BILELE 6,200,000 - 6,200,000
Ms Ma Xuezheng SEitx+ 16,714,000 2,360,000 19,074,000
Number of shares in Digital China Holdings Limited
{an associated corporation of the Company)
REMNBBEZRERAAZROHE
(FnFZEEER)
Personal Fammily il
‘ imierest i 2 ey
! Name of director BEEE AR g
|
Mr Liu Chuanzhi MExEE 896,000 25,600 921,600 J f
Mr Zeng Maochao Yt 408,000 - 408,000 | " |
Mr Yang Yuanging BRERE 520,000 - 520,000 ‘ |
Ms Ma Xuezheng SEEZT 1,646,400 - 1,646,400 ‘
Directors’ rights to acquire shares EEEERG2ERN

Certain directors have been granted aptions to subscribe for MENLRZEEBIESNE)  ETEERERTE
shares in the Company pursuant to the Company’s Employee B REARRIZIRG FEEFINAEAREE A
Share Option Scheme, details of which are set out in the previcus Eh9) -

part of this report.
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Directors’ rigats o accuire shares continued

Apart from the share options as referred to above, call options
have been granted on 5th June 2000 by Bt83Z R AR D
("LHL"), the controlling shareholder of the Company, to certain
persons including the following directors pursuant to which they
are respectively entitled (subject to certain conditions) to acquire,
and to require LHL to sell, shares of the Company, at a price of
HK$0.5325 per share during a period ending 1st August 2007.

Y IR 4y e Ak

B EMFTIECEERREN RITEZEZTESAL
B AAEZIERREBEITRER A AMEE AL
(BETIHES RERBHE  BUHEESEEE
GRT2B FEATE) e R ELHISZIRER AR
BEZZELENA—HLBHEREREK0.5325
TZEREERDTRMD -

Numiber of shares in the Company

| RATRZRABE

Femily ol |
i imErest |

Mr Liu Chuanzhi mEELE
Mr Zeng Maochao IR E
Mr Yang Yuanging BILERE
Ms Ma Xuezheng SEfxt

6,000,000 720,000 6,720,000 |
4,000,000 600,000 4,600,000 |
4,000,000 - 4,000,000 |
4,000,000 - 4,000,000 !

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares
in the subsidiaries held in trust for the Group by certain directors,
as at 31st March 2002, none of the directors or their associates
had any interests in any shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as recorded by the register of the
Company pursuant to the SDI Ordinance.

Sulbstaniial interests in the share capital of the Company
According to the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance as at 31st March 2002,
the following corporations had an interest of 10% or more of
the issued share capital of the Company:

BEXAFERERE TESUETENARREEERS
EETHRORZREARNS  SEFIREZH
BATR-ER-_HZRA=+-AHESELREHK
EEERDEE RSN A LR RBEREERETIR
T2 ERM 2 EmR

REDRBEERER
BEANR TR _F-A= T REREEERK

PIE16(ERTFZELZMRE - TAZEEERL
FIEBTRAF10%RIA L2

LHL AR AR A 4,293,475,144 57% 1!
Employees’ Shareholding BpAssr ﬁxﬁﬁEA EJ ‘

Society of LHL BIisRE 4,293,475,144 57% 2
Right Lane Limited AR A E] 1,419,518,420 19% 3 \
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Substantial interests in the share capital of

the Company continued
Notes:

1. Direct transliteration of its Chinese company name in English is Legend Holdings
Limjted.

2. Employees’ Shareholding Society of LHL is an equity holder of LHL which in turn
wholly owns Right Lane Limited and is therefore taken to be interested in the
shares held by those two companies respectively.

3. Right Lane Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of LHL. Therefore, number of
shares in which Right Lane Limited is shown as being interested is part of the
shares in which LHL is shown to be interested.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Retirement scheme arrangements

For the period from 1st April 1998 to 30th November 2000, the
Group provided all qualified Hong Kong employees with a defined
contribution scheme, which was established under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. Under the rules
of the scheme, all participating employees were required to
contribute 5% of their basic monthly salary plus cashable
commission, whereas the employer's contribution is at 5%, 7.5%
and 10% in pursuance of each participating employee’s
continuous years of service and as specified in accordance with
the rules of the scheme. The assets of the scheme are
continuously held under a provident fund managed by an
independent trustee. Also, with the implementation of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF”) by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region effective on 1st
December 2000, the Group and employees discontinued
contributions to the scheme. Although the scheme was frozen,
the employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
contribution with investment return after ten complete years of
service, or at an increasing scale of between 30% to 90% after
completion of three to nine years' service. Where there are
employees who leave the Group prior to vesting fully in such
contributions, the forfeited contributions will be refunded to the
Group.

REQXRBFZERER 5

7 B XA B e B X B 5E 2L egend Holdings Limited »

HIER R A TR IR e AR GIR 2 5] R - W
BERRERLATISEREHEERAE] B HEERER L
BIHRSRERSEZME L B R HEE -

3 AHERLTAREEREMATZEREZMNEAT - Bl
BEERTFRLRG DAL LATRERRERATEZR
B EE—H5 -

EEEN
FATETURTEERLAATBBERAEH 2T
MBAED 7 ERETRELN -

B {IRE
R—ANANFRE—BE-ZTEE+—A=+8BH
- FEEAMEEERZERESIRE—BRER
FERAREEIEPRE 2 EREEFGR RS - BIFEZE
EIZIBE - FIE2ETBICEEHEXNEARTE
FIRERe 2 SRIEARMEK  MEEZ ZHKEIZER
SEHEEE P BERETFHRZITE IR ERN
5% - 7.5%RI10%TF - it 8l 2 EEBBIT
A%ﬁ@Z@Eﬁ%ﬁom%*ﬁ%%%ﬁ&EE:
TETF+_RA—BETRSIELEe ([BES))
% EERESEENZEIRE - @aaﬁ% [
B BRERERTER  ARDBEZHRZ
100%BERIEFEEE - FRBIER=FENFRIE
EigH ABGEFHATZI0%E0%TE - HEE
EREFEFESER T ARMAAER - B s #
FBEETEREE -
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Retirement scheme arrang@ments continved

Under the MPF scheme established by the Group, all qualified
employees are required to contribute 5% of their basic salary
plus cashable allowances (subject to the ceiling under the
requirements set-out in the MPF legislation) whereas the
employer's contribution is at 7.5% and 10% respectively after
completion of five and ten years of service.

The Group also participates in a local municipal government
retirement scheme in the PRC whereby it is required to make an
annual contribution of no more than 19% of three times the
monthly average salaries as set out by the local municipal
government each year. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retirees of the gualified staff in the PRC.

Connected transactions

The following transactions constitute connected transactions of
the Company and require disclosure in the annual report pursuant
to Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Listing Rules”).

1. Pursuant to a tenancy agreement dated 12th May 1999, a
subsidiary of the Company leased from Right Lane Limited,
a substantial shareholder of the Company, five premises at
Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong as staff quarters for a term of 2
years commencing from 1st June 1999 at a monthly rental
of HK$110,000.

2. Pursuant to a tenancy agreement dated 31st May 2001,
the Company has leased from Right Lane Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, three premises at
Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong as staff quarters for a term of 2
years from 1st June 2001 at a monthly rental of HK$80,000.
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Connected transactions continued

3.

Pursuant to a tenancy agreement dated 16th January 2002,
a subsidiary of the Company has leased from Shenzhen
Legend Science Park Company Limited, a subsidiary of the
controlling shareholder, certain office premises and car
parking spaces situated at Legend Research and
Development Building, Hi-Tech Industrial Park, Shennan
District, Shenzhen, China. The tenancy is for a term of 46
months expiring on 15th November 2005 at a monthly rental
of RMB1,309,300, exclusive of management fees and other
outgoings.

Upon the setting up of a joint venture FM365.com Limited
with AOL China Holdings LLC, Beijing Legend FM Science
and Technology Company Limited ("Legend FM"), a
subsidiary of the Company’s controlling shareholder (B8
JERRETE N F]), has agreed to provide certain interactive
services to the Group:

a) Pursuant to a marketing agreement dated 20th
November 2001, Legend FM has agreed to provide
certain users of Legend PCs with access to its online
account for distribution of interactive services provided
by Legend FM in return of account access fees
determined under the account access contract (see
below). It is expected that this agreement will continue
for a period of five years commencing from 20th
November 2001.

b) Pursuant to an account access contract dated 20th
November 2001, Legend FM has agreed to provide
account access to users of Legend PCs which have been
bundled with software licensed for use of the interactive
services provided by Legend FM. The account access
fee paid by Legend (Beijing) Limited to Legend FM for
the year ended 31st March 2002 was HK$50,330,000.

Besides, FM365.com Limited’s subsidiary sold to Legend Fivi
certain assets such as servers, computer equipment and
software (which was acguired from the Group) at a transfer
price of RMB7.4 million pursuant to a transfer of business
contract dated 20th November 2001.

8

3.
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Cornrecied transacions continued

The Company had been granted a waiver by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong from the strict compliance of the
requirements of Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules in respect
of the transactions 4a and 4b above. These transactions
have been reviewed by independent non-executive directors
of the Company who have confirmed that these transactions

were!

) conducted in the ordinary and usual course of the
Group's business;

iy on normal commercial terms and on terms that are fair
and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the
Company are concerned;

i) entered into in accordance with the terms of the
agreement governing these transactions; and

iV} not exceed 3% of the audited consolidated net tangible
assets of the Group in the financial year.

Subseguent to the spin off of Digital China Holdings Limited
and its subsidiaries ("DCHL Group™) from the Group for
separate listing in June 2001, DCHL became an associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company’s controlling
shareholder. DCHL is deemed as a connected person in
relation to the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

a) Pursuant to a management agreement dated 8th May
2001 between the Company’s subsidiary and DCHL,
the Group has agreed to share with DCHL Group certain
office space situated at 20/, Devon House, Taikoo Place,
979 King's Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong for the period
from 16th May 2001 to 30th November 2002 in return
of a monthly management fee of HK$ 186,270 exclusive
of rates, management fees and other related expenses.
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Connected transaclions continusd

b)

9]

Pursuant to a tenancy agreement dated 27th March
2000 between a subsidiary of the Company and a
subsidiary of DCHL, the Group has sub-leased to DCHL
Group certain office space situated at Lian Xiang
Building, Southeastern Corner of 1 Tai Yi Road, Belin
District, Xian, China at a monthly rental of RMB72,400.
The tenancy is for a term of 5 years commencing from
15t October 1999.

The Group purchased information technology products
from DCHL Group. For the year ended 31st March 2002,
such purchases amounted to HK$13,519,000.

The Company had been granted a waiver by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong from the strict compliance of the
requirements of Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules in respect
of the transaction 5c above. These transactions have been
reviewed by independent non-executive directors of the
Company who have confirmed that these transactions were:

i)

iii)

conducted in the ordinary and usual course of the
Group's business,

on normal commercial terms or on terms that are fair
and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the
Company are concerned;

entered into in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions, or (where
there are no such agreements) on terms no less
favourable than those available to or from independent
third parties; and

not exceed the higher of: (1) 1% of the audited
consolidated turnover of the Group; and (2) HK$46.3
million, in the financial year.

6. Prior to the spin-off of DCHL Group, purchases from D-Link
Corporation and its subsidiaries (“D-Link Group”) were
deemed as connected transactions for the purpose of the
Listing Rules. The Group purchased computer networking
products amounted to HK$61,859,000 from D-Link Group
for the year ended 31st March 2002.
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Connecled transections continved
The Company had been granted a waiver by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong from the strict compliance of the
requirements of Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules in respect
of the aforesaid transactions. These transactions have been
reviewed by independent non-executive directors of the
Company who have confirmed that these transactions were:

i) conducted in the ordinary and usual course of the
Group's business;

i) on normal commercial terms and on terms that are fair
and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the
Company are concerned;

iy entered into in accordance with the terms of the
agreement governing such transactions, or (where there
are no such agreements) on terms no less favourable
than those available to or from independent third
parties; and

iv) not exceed 2% of the audited consolidated turnover
of the Group in the financial year.

Maier customers and suppiiers

The five largest customers and the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for less than 30 per cent of the Group's turnover
and purchases respectively in the year.

Code of best practice

The Company has established an audit committee comprising
Mr Wong Wai Ming and Prof Woo Chia-Wei, independent non-
executive directors of the Company. In establishing the terms of
reference for this committee, the committee and the directors
have had regards to the “Guide for Formation of an Audit
Committee” issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants
in December 1997.

Apart from the fact that the non-executive directors are not
appointed for a specific term as they are subject to retirement
by rotation at annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company's Articles of Association, the Company has complied
with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the

Listing Rules throughout the year.
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Auditors At
The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who SACHBERNKESHMERIER - BRAKE

retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. BHANEBESET -
On behalf of the Board EEEE®D
s
L/ 7 (/%@MM % /
Liu Chuanzhi e
Chairman nEx
Hong Kong, 23rd May 2002 &8 —EE-_#TA-+=H
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PRICEVATERHOUSE( COPERS

T S BRI AR E A AT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LEGEND GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Legend Holdings Limited)
{incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 64 to 126 which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and zuditors

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the directors to
prepare accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing
accounts which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

it is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on
our audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of oxinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts.
It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.
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We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
accounts. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st March
2002 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year
then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

iidelinen

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23rd May 2002
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For the year ended 31st March 2002

MWD e Jo= ML TN

BE_TZE_F=A=+HULFE

2002

2001
{Restated)
(Z5))

Turnover

Earnings before interest,
taxation, depreciation
and amortisation expenses

Depreciation expenses
Amoartisation of goodwill
Impairment loss of goodwill
Interest income

Gains/ (losses) on disposal
of subsidiaries,
associated companies
and investment securities

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Share of profits of jointly
controlled entities

Share of losses of associated
companies

Profit before taxation
Taxation
Profit after taxation

Minority interests

Profit attributable to shareholders

Dividends

Earnings per share
- Basic
— Fully dituted

BERE

BAIE  BIE
FE RSB
R

HEER
EEHH
ERREEE
2N
HERBERR]

BERE
REHREZ
Wes/ (B518)

EEEF

HMERER

FE{E H B

B

=g oy
NEEA

BRIRATEF
A
BT
PR ES
IR EN
BE
SRAF

—&X
—Z2EHEE

2(g)(ii)
2(9)0)

20853254 27219212
1,008,938 970,700 |
(143,048) (123,359)

. (580,877) |

- (165,640) ‘\

67,360 103,214 w

|

|

|

164,240 (1,338) |
1,097,490 202,700 |
(11,785) (33,516) \
1,085,705 169,184
8,468 -

|

{12,979) (6,628) i
1,081,194 162,556 |
(23,092) (19,156) |
1,058,102 143,400 |
(13,202) (29,886) ‘

1,044,900 113,514
383,897 1073.212

13.86 cents{l
13.79 centsil

1.52 centsfill
1.51 centsfil
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As at 31st March 2002 RIBE-_FE=A=Z+—R8

Group Company
g0 QF
2002 2001 2002 2001
(Restated) (Restated)
(EF) (EF1)
| HIK$000 HIKS 000 HXE00E HLGB0D |
|
Non-current assets FRBEE 1
Tangible fixed assets EVEEEE 13 847,316 717,577 3,169 5,713 |
Construction-in-progress ERIR 14 43,866 199,984 - -
Investments in subsidiaries REBARZEE 1504) - - 2,327,875 2.327.975 |
Investments in jointly AR ‘
controlled entities EBIRE 16 210,432 - - -
Investments in associated REEENEZ
companies "E 17(a) 204,806 129,040 - -
Loan to a related company &Gkl
i8] 17(b) - - 50,034 -
Investment securities BHRE 18 30,762 85,735 - -
1,337,182 1,132,336 2,381,078 2,333,688 7\‘
Current assets TBEE E‘
Inventories rE 19 855519 2,101,112 - -
Amounts due FEURFAE |
from subsidiaries RNEIRZK 15(b) - - 2,139,345 2,307,619
Amounts due from jointly FEU A RER
controlled entities ZBRRE 20 194,132 - - .
Accounts receivable FEM RN 21 678,344 1,745,852 - -
Deposits, prepayments and ®e - BRRE |
other receivables R E f R AR ER 185,391 415,042 76,633 12,656 |
Cash and bank balances Be RFTH&ES 22 2,441,169 2,633,651 1,393,209 1,555,209 |
4,354,555 6,895,657 3,609,887 3,875,484
Current liabilities hBRE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHBLARIRER 150b) - - 189,468 13,720
Accounts payable FEFTBRRR 23 1,336,731 2,278,804 - -
Accruals and other FEER R
payables HpEAERR 663,361 847,165 16,197 49,288
Tax payable FEfTARIE 2,231 11,822 - -
Current portion of :3-i)=V-pd
long-term liabilities ~EREEERE 24 - 816,709 - -
2,002,323 4,054,500 205,665 63,008
Net current assets RBEETE 2,352,232 2,841,157 3,404,222 3,812,476
Total assets less current BEER
liabilities RBRE 3,689,414 3,973,493 5,785,300 6,146,164
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As at 31st March 2002

-l I = N 1

RIBTEZF=/=+—8H

Group Company
£0 G|
2802 2001 2002 2001
(Restated) {(Restated)
(E31

Financed by: EeRR |
Share capital g 26 187,701 187,849 187,701 187,849 |
Reserves e 27 4,779,553 4,761,944 4,733,990 4,589,893 2;
(Accumulated losses)/ (BtER) “
retained profits REEF 28
Proposed special BRESH |
interim dividend HHERE - 808,000 - 808,000
Proposed final dividend BEERERE 271,051 181,730 271,051 181,730
Other Hid (1,556,271) {2,056,601) 592,254 378,388
Shareholders’ funds BRES 3,682,034 3,882,922 5,784,996 6,145,860 |
Minority interests SERRES 7,050 74,458 - -1
Long-term liabilities RBER 24 330 16,113 304 304 :
3,689,414 3,973,493 5,785,300 6,146,164 ‘
On behalf of the Board
REEES
Liu Chuanzhi Yang Yuanging
M@= BwLE
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolicated Casn Flow sTatement ° HREREFIMEIR
BE_ET_FZRA=+—-HILEE

For the year ended 31st March 2002

2002 2001
(Restated)
(&%)

HRE"

m i @ 1‘u’Rﬁ@
i W/

Net cash inflow from
operating activities

Returns on investments
and servicing of finance

Interest received

Interest paid and finance charges
under finance leases

Dividends paid

Net cash outflow from returns
on investments and
servicing of finance

Taxation

Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas tax paid

Total taxation paid
Investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Sale of tangible fixed assets

Payment for construction-in-progress

Purchase of investment securities
Sale of investment securities
Acquisition of a subsidiary

Acquisition of associated companies

Net cash outflow in respect of
disposal of subsidiaries

Investment in jointly controlled entities

Repayment of advance from
an associated company

Proceeds from disposal of
an associated company

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Net cash outflow before financing

RERBHE
REFHR 33

RELH
kBEER

FBURA

A B R
BOBEER

AR B,

HE O
LBEER
FriE 2 %8R

B

A EEFIEH
EIEsIE

ANTRRAE
RERH

BEEFETEE
LTEEEETEE
ZAEREIERE
EEESFLE
HEEHERE
EAMBLATE 38
BABERTE
HEHBLT

R FE 37
HEAEIERIES
BENREBRRER

HEBREQTMEIIA

RERSFFEREFE
REBBRRESBE

809,490 770,943
i
1

67,360 103,214
(11,785) (33,516)
(294,578) (216,452)
!

|

(239,003) (146,754)
LR
i

- (5,168)
(22,047) (4,309)
(22,047) (9,477)
(268,536) (284,728) |
32,236 26,426 j
(187,053) (170,736) |
(2,746) !
23,229 -
- (102,810)

- (233,216)
|

(127,240) (25,682)
(250,747) -
10,004 1,200 ﬂ
|
37,736 -
(733,117) (789,546)
(184,677) (174,834)
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For the year ended 31st March 2002

NN L 0 L L == K
BRE_TTE-_F=/B=+-HIFE

2002

2001
(Restated)

(E)

S

Financing

Increase in minority interests
Exercise of share options
and issue of new shares
Repurchase of shares
New issue expenses
Increase in bank loans
Payment of capital elements
of finance leases
(Decrease)/increase in
loans from minority shareholders
of a subsidiary

Net cash (outflow)/inflow
from financing

(Decrease)/increase in cash and

cash equivalents
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
Cash and cash eguivalents

at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

BB

DYRRE RN

ITEERER
BITHIRG
ElEig

BITHRNER

EAEBITER

BEMBHEY
ZAE

MBLRLR

R ORI 18 m

& (Ffe) /Fris

REFH

34

ReRERRS B

i

EReH yE

FPERER

SERAE

FHRRTR
FERRE

35

- 34,287 |

)

143,949 87,068 |
(263,761) -
- (69)
121,493 633,645 ‘
|

- (2,618)

(4,840) 19,385 ‘

|

(3,157) 771,698 |
________________ |
(187,834) 596,864 |
(6,648) (926) |
2,633,651 2,037,713
2,441,169 2,633,651 |
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Consolidated Statement or Recognised Gains and Losses -

For the year ended 31st March 2002

e WA RS RERR

BE_BZR_#=-F=+—HBIL¥%E

2002 2001
{Restated)
5

Deficit on revaluation
of investment securities

Exchange differences arising
from translation of subsidiaries,
associated companies and
jointly controlled entities

Net losses not recognised
in the profit and loss account

Profit for the year

Less: Realisation of investment
revaluation reserve upon
disposal of investment
securities to the profit
and loss account

Total recognised gains

Goodwill arising from acquisition
of subsidiaries and
associated companies

Goodwill written back/(off)
arising from disposal of
subsidiaries and an
associated company

Cumulative effect of
changes in accounting
policies adopted 1st April 2001:

Accumulated losses at 1st April
- effect of adopting
SSAP 9 (revised)

- effect of adopting SSAP 29

— effect of adopting SSAP 31

BRREAZERER
ZER

FEEIHIE L F]
BERE kAR
RHERRRS
MELZEREE

ARBREBTER
ZEEEFE

TERET]

B REER
FENLE
BHRER
BRWEA
Bax

BRZUAEEA

WEEMB AR RBLE LT
FELZBE

=

18

EUNS]

L/ (%’Zﬁ?) ZEE

g&mﬁf
2!&\)
L AR DY
N

R s

/

BE-EE-FNE—H
EHETHERL
ZEEE

MA—BZZEEE
—RAEHBBE

EOW (s v &
—EReHBERRE9 2 HE
-~ HEREHERENEN T FE

27

27

27

27

27

26s), 28
2(g), 28
2(g), 28

(36,058) (6,914)

3,819 (1,128) 4

|

|
(32,239) (8,042)
1,044,900 113,514
(13,518) -
989,143 105,472

|

- (27,845) !

|

‘1
22,897 (373)
1,022,040 77,254
989,730 133,510
{1,287,850) (1,306,973)

(199,617) (33,977) |
(1,097,737) (1,207,440)
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Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with
accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants ("HKSA"). They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention except that, as disclosed in the
accounting policies below, investment securities are stated at
fair value.

In the current year, the Group adopted the following Statements
of Standard Accounting Practice ("SSAPs”) issued by the HKSA
which are, unless otherwise stated, effective for accounting
periods commencing on or after 1st January 2001:

SSAP 9 (revised) Events after the balance sheet date

SSAP 14 (revised) Leases (effective for periods
commencing on or after 1st July
2000)

SSAP 26 Segment reporting

SSAP 28 Provisions, contingent liabilities
and contingent assets

SSAP 29 Intangible assets

SSAP 30 Business combinations

SSAP 31 Impairment of assets

SSAP 32 Consolidated financial statements

and accounting for investments in
subsidiaries

The effect of adopting these new standards is set out in the
accounting policies below.
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Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of

these consolidated accounts are set out below:

(a) Basis of consolidation

(i

(i)

(iv)

{vi)

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st March.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated profit and loss
account from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, controls more than half of its voting power
or issued share capital or controls the composition of
its board of directors.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents
the difference between the proceeds of the sale and
the Group's share of its net assets together with any
unamortised goodwill or capital reserve which was not
previously charged or recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account and any related accumulated
exchange reserve.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the operating results and net assets of
subsidiaries.

In the Company's balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

2

FEFHER

T

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

{vi)

ERAUGERESFREZIESFTHEFIIW

FEEREBEFIDIARENBLTRE
A=Z+—HZEKE - RAFERBANE
B MBRRZRE  HWEENEEE
SEENEEMER I QER)FTALE

ok

MEARIEAR AR ERAEEESED
ERFRAEXDBETRANEHNELESS
CEI AN

FEEAELRRBZABEERR S REH
OREAREREE -

HEMBRRBERELEMSFEREA
SEAMSEEEFEERBELRT AL
BERBRANBRGEBERANER 2 RS
HEBELEBUAREMRRREIINE
HhEEEREN CERE -

DB TR IR (S B AT
e AR 2 R

IBRERETER T ENRREERE
BRINARREERER - WBLAZ
RERRB MR BRI EEET AT LT
BRH -
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Netes te the Accounts -
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2 Princinal accounting policies continued

(b) Joint ventures

(i

(ii)

(i)

A joint venture is & contractual arrangement whereby
the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of
the participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the
Group’s share of the results of jointly controlled entities
for the year, and the consolidated balance sheet includes
the Group's share of the net assets of the jointly
controlled entities and goodwill/negative goodwill (net
of accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses) on acquisition.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a jointly controlled
entity represents the difference between the proceeds
of the sale and the Group’s share of its net assets
together with any unamortised goodwill or negative
goodwill and which was not previously charged or
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account
and any related accumulated exchange reserve.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of jointly controlled
entities are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable.
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2

Principal accounting policies continved

{c) Associated companies

0

(ii)

(iii)

An associated company is a company, not being a
subsidiary, in which an equity interest is held for the
long-term and significant influence is exercised in its
management. The consolidated profit and loss account
includes the Group's share of the results of associated
companies for the year, and the consolidated balance
sheet includes the Group’s share of the net assets of
the associated companies and goodwill/negative
goodwill (net of accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses) on acquisition.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associated
company represents the difference between the
proceeds of the sale and the Group's share of its net
assets together with any unamortised goodwill or
negative goodwill and which was not previously charged
or recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account
and any related accumulated exchange reserve,

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
associated companies are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of associated
companies are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

2

TEFHEE &
BEXF

(c)
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Notes to the Accounts - fRB iz

2 Princinel accounting policies continved 2 EFFHEEK 4
(d) Tramslation of foreign currencies (d) sErE
Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated REEZINBRGIEXSAZABERE R
into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at BT LNEEEZEEREESEERERY
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities HaERBESETHEMARERN - BEEEZ
denominated in foreign currencies are incorporated into the EREFECEABERPRE -

accounts by translating foreign currencies into Hong Kong
dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising therefrom are dealt with
in the profit and loss account.

The balance sheets of subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities USMNERIEE 2B ATE - AEEHEEREE
and associated companies expressed in foreign currencies DRIZEEABREFEEOZEXRE  MA
are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance BRIAEERGE - BEEZEXZHAEA
sheet date whilst the profit and loss is translated at an REEEEE -

average rate. Exchange differences are dealt with as a
movement in reserves.

(e} Tangible fixed assets () BREEEEE
() Land use rights, leasehold land and buildings/ () LHofEEE - BLOLHMRIET FEE
improvements
Land use rights, leasehold land and buildings/ THERE BT RIET SRR
improvements are stated at cost less accumulated RNEMGEBRHERTER R HEA
amortisation or depreciation and accumulated IR -

impairment losses.

Land use rights are amortised on a straight line basis Tl AR T REFR20E50F
over the land use rights periods ranging from 20 to 50 NEERLE -
years,
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Principal accounting policies continued

(e) Tangible fixed assets continved

(in

Amortisation of leasehold land is calculated to write
off its cost over the unexpired period of the lease or
their expected useful lives to the Group of 50 years
whichever is shorter. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are 2% to 5%.

Depreciation on buildings is calculated to write off their
cost over the unexpired period of the leases or their
expected useful lives to the Group of 50 years whichever
is shorter. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are 2% to 5%.

Depreciation of leasehold improvements is calculated
to write off their cost on the straight line basis over
their expected useful lives to the Group of 5 years or
unexpired periods of the leases whichever is shorter.
The principal annual rate used for this purpose is 20%.

Other tangible fixed assets

Other tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation on other tangible fixed assets is
calculated to write off their cost on the straight line
basis over their expected useful lives to the Group. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are 20% to
33%.

2

FEEHBE &
() AWETEE &

(i

RO EE IR AN S F NIRRT
AEREEREAZS0FE (MEBEE) #
HEKAE - IRAZTEHHFEDR2%

£5% °
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SR AEEFERZSEHRMOMBFEL
(BEBEE)MEERAE - FREZE
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ErAENERESEREENTRAE
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Notes to the Accounts -
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2 Principal accounting zolicies continved

(e) Tangible fixed assets continved

iii)

(iv)

Leased assets

Where assets are acquired through finance leases
(including hire purchase contracts) under which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,
other than legal title, are transferred to the Group, the
assets are treated as if they had been purchased. An
amount equivalent to the cost is recorded as a tangible
fixed asset. The corresponding lease commitments are
shown as aobligations under finance leases. Payments
to the lessor are treated as consisting of capital and
interest elements. The interest element is charged to
the profit and loss account. Assets held under finance
leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated
useful lives or lease periods as in (ii) above. All other
leases are accounted for as operating leases.

Impairment of tangible fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external
sources of information are considered to assess whether
there is any indication that assets included in
contruction-in-progress and tangible fixed assets are
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated and where relevant,
an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to
its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are
recognised in the profit and loss account except where
the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss
does not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same
asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
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Princinal accounting policies continued

(e) Tangible fixed assets continued

®

(v) Gain or loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets
The gain or loss on disposal of a tangible fixed asset is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised
in the profit and loss account.

(vi) Cost of restoring and improving tangible fixed assets
Major costs incurred in restoring tangible fixed assets
to their normal working condition are charged to the
profit and loss account. Improvements are capitalised
and depreciated over their expected useful lives to the
Group.

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost. Cost comprises
all direct and indirect costs of acquisition or construction of
buildings and plant and machinery as well as interest
expenses and exchange differences on the related funds
borrowed during the construction, installation and testing
periods and prior to the commencement date, less any
accumulated impairment losses. No depreciation is provided
on construction-in-progress. On completion, the buildings
and plant and machinery are transferred to tangible fixed
assets at cost less impairment losses.
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Princinel accounting policies contnued

(g) Intangible assets

@

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase
consideration over the fair values ascribed to the net
assets of subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and
associated companies acquired at the date of
acquisition.

In accordance with SSAP 30, goodwill on acquisitions
occurring on or after 1st January 2001 is included in
intangible assets and is amortised using the straight-
line method over its estimated useful life. Goodwill
arising on major strategic acquisitions of the Group to
expand its product or geographical market coverage is
amortised over a maximum period of 20 years. For all
other acquisitions goodwill is generally amortised over
3 to 10 years.

SSAP 31 prescribes procedures to be applied to ensure
that assets are carried at not more than their recoverable
amounts. The recoverable amount of an asset is defined
10 be the higher of its net selling price and its value in
use. The Group determines the value in use of its assets
(including fixed assets, goodwill arising on business
combinations accounted for using the purchase method
and intangible assets) as the present value of estimated
future cash flows together with estimated disposal
proceeds at the end of its useful life. The Group is
required to assess at each balance sheet date whether
there are any indications that assets may be impaired,
and if there are such indications, the recoverable amount
of the assets is to be determined. Any resulting
impairment losses identified are charged to the
consolidated profit and loss account.
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Principal accounting policies coninved

{g) Intangible assets continved

i

(i

Goodwill continued

In accordance with the provisions of interpretation 13,
assessments of impairment of goodwill also apply to
goodwill previcusly eliminated against reserves which
will not be reinstated at the time of adoption of SSAP
30. Any impairment loss identified in respect of goodwill
previously eliminated against reserves is to be recognised
as an expense in the consolidated profit and Joss
account.

The Group has performed an assessment of the fair
value of its assets, including the related goodwill that
had previously been charged to reserves. The Group
has retrospectively restated its previously reported net
profits for the years ended 31st March 1999 and 31st
March 2001 by a decrease of approximately
HK$33,977,000 and HK$165,640,000 respectively for
the impairment of goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associated companies.

Trademarks

Effective in December 1997, the Group acquired the
entire equity interest in Legend (Beijing) Limited from
its controlling shareholder. The intangible assets arising
thereon were regarded as trademarks which were
valued by an independent valuer on an open market
value basis and capitalised in the consolidated balance
sheet with no amortisation.
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2 FPrincipal accounting poticies continued 2 EEEFBEK 4
{g) Intangible assets continued (@ BEEE &
(\I) Trademarks continved (ii) /;"5?‘—? g

Under the new SSAP 29, the intangible assets should
be regarded as goodwill on acquisition and amortised
over their estimated useful lives. In view of the fact that
Digital China Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
contributed a substantial part of the operating results
of the Group since the acquisition of Legend (Beijing)
Limited and the rapid change in computer technology,
the directors consider that it is prudent and appropriate
to amortise goodwill from the date of acquisition (i.e.
December 1997) up to the date of announcement of
the spin-off of Digital China Holdings Limited from the
Group in March 2001. The change in accounting policy
arising from the adoption of the new SSAP 29 has been
applied retrospectively so that the comparatives
presented have been restated to conform with the
change in accounting policy.

Opening accumulated losses at 1st April 2000 have
increased by approximately HK$1,306,973,000 which
is the amount of the adjustment in respect of
amortisation of goodwill relating to period prior to the
year ended 31st March 2000. Opening accumulated
losses at 1st April 2001 have increased by approximately
HK$1,887,850,000 which is the amount of the
adjustment in respect of amortisation of goodwill
relating to periods prior to the year ended 31st March
2001. A corresponding decrease in intangible fixed
assets by approximately HK$1,887,850,000 has been
reflected in the comparative 31st March 2001
consolidated balance sheet.
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Principal accounting policies conrnved

{(9)

()

Intangible assets continued

(i) Trademarks continued
This adjustment in respect of amortisation of the
goodwill has resulted in a decrease in profit for the
year ended 31st March 2001 by approximately
HK$580,877,000.

(iiiy Impairment of intangible assets
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying
amount of any intangible asset, including goodwill
previously written off against reserves, is assessed and
written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

Investment securities

Investments which are held for non-trading purpose are
stated at fair value at the balance sheet date. Changes in
the fair value of individual securities are credited or debited
to the investment revaluation reserve until the security is
sold, or is determined to be impaired. Upon disposal, the
cumulative gain or loss representing the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant security, together with any surplus/deficit transferred
from the investment revaluation reserve, is dealt with in the
profit and loss account.

Individual investments are reviewed regularly to determine
whether they are impaired. When an investment is
considered to be impaired the cumulative loss recorded in
the revaluation reserve is taken to the profit and loss account.

Transfers from the investment revaluation reserve to the
profit and loss account as a result of impairments are written
back in the profit and loss account when the circumstances
and events leading to the impairment cease to exist.
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2  Principal accounting policies continved

(®

)

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis, and
in the case of work-in-progress and finished goods (except
for trading products), cost comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an attributable proportion of production
overheads. For trading products, cost represents invoiced
value on purchases, less purchase returns and discounts.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated
sales proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

Accounts receivable

Provision is made against accounts receivable to the extent
that they are considered to be doubtful. Accounts receivable
in the balance sheet are stated net of such provision.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eqguivalents are carried in the balance sheet
at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits
held at call with banks.

Provisions

In accordance with SSAP 28, provisions are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the
Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
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2 Principal accounting policies continued

{m) Contingent liabilities

(n)

(o)

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the accounts. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then

be recognised as a provision.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current taxation
rate in respect of timing differences between profit as
computed for taxation purposes and profit as stated in the
accounts to the extent that a liability or an asset is expected
to be payable or receivable in the foreseeable future.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the leasing company are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental applicable to such
operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2 Principal accounting policies continued

(P

(@

(r)

Revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recogrised on the transfer
of ownership, which generally coincides with the time of
shipment. Revenue from provision of systems integration
service is recognised when services are rendered. Revenue
from provision of internet service is recognised when services
are rendered. Interest income is accrued on a time proportion
basis on the principal amounts outstanding and at the rates
applicable. Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group's contributions to the defined contribution
retirement scheme for gualified Hong Kong employees are
expensed as incurred and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in the contributions. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

In addition, the Group’s contributions to a local municipal
government retirerment scheme in the PRC are expensed as
incurred while the local municipal government in the PRC
undertakes to assume the retirement benefit obligations of
all existing and future retirees of the qualified staff in the
PRC.

Segment reporting

in accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting,
the Group has determined that geographical segments be
presented as the primary reporting format and business as
the secondary reporting format.

Segment assets consist primarily of inventories and
receivables, and mainly exclude investments in jointly
controlled entities, investments in associated companies,
investments securities, tangible fixed assets and cash and
cash equivalents. Segment liabilities comprise operating
liabilities and exclude tax payable, deferred taxation and
certain borrowings. Capital expenditure comprises additions
to tangible fixed assets (Note 13) and construction-in-
progress (Note 14).
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Principal accounting policies continued
(s) Dividends

In accordance with the revised SSAP 9, the Group no longer
recognises dividends proposed or declared after the balance
sheet date as a liability at the balance sheet date. The change
in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively so that
the comparative figures have been restated to conform with
the current year’s policy.

Opening accumulated losses at 1st April 2000 have
decreased by approximately HK$133,510,000 which is the
reversal of the provision for proposed final dividend for year
1999/2000 previously recorded as a liability as at 31st March
2000 although declared after balance sheet date. Opening
accumulated losses at 1st April 2001 have decreased by
approximately HK$989,730,000 which is the reversal of the
provisions for proposed special interim dividend and final
dividend both for the year 2000/01 previously recorded as
liabilities as 31st March 2001 although declared after balance
sheet date. This adjustment has resulted in a decrease in
current liabilities at 31st March 2001 by approximately
HK$989,730,000 (2000: HK$133,510,000) being provision
for proposed dividends that is no longer required.

Changes to headings used in the balance sheet and profit
and loss account relating to dividends and retained profit
for the year as previously reported in 2000/01 annual report
have also been made to reflect the changes resulting from
the application of SSAP 9 (revised).
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Turnover, revenue and segment information

The Group is principally engaged in the sale and manufacturing
of Legend brand personal computers and handheld devices, the
provision of IT services and Internet services, and contract
manufacturing business. Revenue recognised during the year are

as follows:

B B ROERE
AEBIERBHERCEWEREATY  FHE
B REITRE  ERERRE  URAFNEE

o FRFERZWALT ¢

Group

Favaty)
i

HRE008

Consumer IT business SHEBITERS
Corporate IT business DEITEE
Handheld device business FIHREER
Contract manufacturing business AW%L%Z‘%
Internet service business ERBEER
Others Ef*@

7,400,769 7,368,059
10,077,796 8,872,653 -
216,434 117,534 |
1,533,864 1,714,978 |
38,521 106,172
1,585,870 9,039,816
|

20,853,254 27,219,212 ‘

Primary reporting format — geographical segments

The Group operates, through its subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities and associated companies, in four major geographical
regions — the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Asia Pacific
(excluding PRC), North America and Europe.

There are no material sales or other transactions between the
geographical segments.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments,
segment turnover and segment operating results are based on
the geographical location of customers. Segment assets are based
on the geographical location of the assets. The segment turnover
and segment operating results, if based on geographical location
of assets, are all categorised under PRC operations.
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Turnover, revenue and segment information continued
Secondary reporting format - business segments
The Group is categorised into 5 main business segments:

o Consumer IT business

o Corporate IT business

[e]

Handheld device business

o Contract manufacturing business

o Internet service business

Other operations of the Group mainly comprise business operated
by DCHL, including sales of foreign brand computers and related

products and provision of systems integration services.

There are no material sales or other transactions between the
business segments.
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Turnover, revenue and segment information continved 3

{a) Primary reporting format — geographical segments

SRR ST o

(@) —REBFX — wH@IE

Asia Pacific
{excluding North Group
PRC PRC) America Europe Total
SRR £0
HE (hERRRAM) L& B it
2302 2092
T 7

880

T

Profit and loss account
Turnover
Segment operating results

Gains on disposal of

subsidiaries, associated

companies and investment securities
Finance income

Finance costs

Contribution to operating profit
Share of profits of jointly controlled entities
Share of losses of associated companies

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation
Minority interests

Profit attributable to shareholders

:z@&@~
T

|

|

BER
|
228 19,702,458 282,283 104872 763640 20,853,254 w‘
|
SEEEEE 772,686 30,500 17,833 44873 865890 |
:
HEMELE
ode /N |
REERAZ NS 164,240 - - - 164,240
SR 67,360 .
HHER (11,785)
EFEE 1,085,705
EEAREHEEER 8,468 - - - 8,468 ;
EEBERTER (12,979) - - - (12,979)
I
BRI 1,081,194
HE (23,002)
BEEER 1,058,102 |
SYRRES (13,202)]
BEEE LA 1,044,900
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Turnover, revenue and segment information contnved

(@) Primary reporting format - geographical segments

continued

3 EHE - WERIEESE
(a) —REEHX — I8 s

Asia Pacific
(excluding

PRC PRQ)
AR
(REBRMN

North
America

Balance Sheet

Segment assets

Investments in jointly controlled entities
Investments in associated companies
Investment securities

Unallocated assets

Consolidated total assets

Segment liabilities
Tax liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

EERER

U\
y
i
oo
S

&
31
5wl
s

M\;

[
Sf mE ol A
S5 oD oY
pii

5

>H

>

= s
MmO
bt

1,476,868 -
210,432 -

204,806 -
11,491 19,271

1,980,340 -

3,820

53,614

15,932

1,530,482
210,432
204,806 |

30762 |

3,715,255 |
[
5,691,737 H
\

2,000,092
2,561 |

2,002,653 :
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3 Turnovar revenue and segment informaticn continued 3 HEE WERBRIREN .

(a) —REHHA - wHI® »

{a) Primary reporting format - geographical segments

continued

Asia Pacific
{excluding North Group
PRC PRC) America Europe Total
ERE 3
HE (BRI IEA U &
2001 2001 2001 2001 2001
{Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
ED

By

= m T
\ilj“‘/ \Eg“/

Profit and loss account BE&
Turnover BEE 25,872,557 396,827 245,236 704592 27,219,212 !
|
Segment operating results PREEER 768,915 24,145 36,442 16,839 847,34ﬂ
Lasses on disposal of CEMRLREL
subsidiaries B# (1338) - - - (1,338),
Amortisation of goodwril BEEH (580,877) - - - (580,877)!
Impairment loss of goodwill BERESR (165,640) - - - (165,640},
Finance income BBEA 103,214
Finance costs BHER (33,516’
Contrioution to operating profit BHEH 169,184
Share of losses of associated companies BIRBE LSS {6,628) - - - (6,628) ‘
Profit before taxation FRERET A 162,556 i
\
Taxation B (19,156)"
Profit after taxation BRERR 143,400
Minority interests SERFER {29,88%6)
Profit attributable to shareholders BREEIERN 113,514 -
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Turnover, revenue and segment information continved

(a) Primary reporting format — gecgraphical segments

gam s WHERSEEH
(a) —REBFRX - RS E»

continued
Asia Pacific

{excluding North Group

PRC PRC) America Europe Total

DAE £g

HE (BN JLEM B At

2001 2001 2001 2001 2001

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

=) {85) (B3 )

o
Balance Sheet BERER “
Segment assets NHAE 3,782,138 - 5,008 63,697 3,850,843 ;
Investments in associated companies BELERE 129,040 - - - 129,040 |
Investment securities BEAE 8,038 77,697 - - 8735 |
Unallocated assets FOEEE 3,962,375 3‘
Consolidated total assets GEEERE 8,027,993 :
|
\
Segment liabilities SEAE 3,208,981 3 4,327 12,658 3,225,869 ‘:
Total borrowings EELE 832,459 - - - a4 |
Tax liabilities HESE 12,175 |
I
Consolidated total liabilities GraEnd 4070613 |

Capital expenditure of HK$455,589,000 (2001:
HK$455,464,000) and depreciation of HK$143,048,000 (2001:
HK$123,359,000) by geographical segments were not disclosed

as they were all related to unallocated assets.

B ERE455,589, 000 (BT —F - B
455,464,00070) BT E AR 143,048,000 (ZFF
—%F : E#5123,359,00070) O S EV ERERE
EHRDEEESR o
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NOLEes 1O the ACCOUNTS = RxH AYaT

Turnover, revenue and segment information continved 3

(b) Secondary reporting format - business segments

wE  RRBAEEE o
(b) RBEHFR - £BHE

Turnover

et
2002

Group
=0

Contribution

to operating Consolidated

profit

total assets
=e

2002

Consumer IT business

Corporate IT business

Handheld device business

Contract manufacturing business

Internet service business

Others

Gains on disposal of subsidiaries,
associated companies and
investment securities

Investments in jointly controlled entities

Investments in associated companies

Investment securities

Unallocated assets

HEBITER

ETER

FHREEH
ERIREER
EEEEER

Hi

HEMNEBRE]  BELF
REFRAEZ WS

HKEEsIERRE
BENERE
EHRE
AROEEE

7,400,769 234,335 394,428 .
10,077,796 573,077 917,799 |
216,434 (18,906) 26,393 ‘
1,533,864 147,901 191,862 |
38,521 (36,818) -

1,585,870 21,876 -
- 164,240 -
- - 210,432 |
- - 204,806 |

- - 30,762

- - 3,715,255
20,853,256 1,085,705 5,691,737 |
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3  Turnover, revenue and segment information contined 3 BB WERISEEN g

{(b) Secondary reporting format - business segments (b) RBERHN - ¥¥HE 4
continued
Group
£E

Contribution Consclidated
to operating total assets

Turnover profit Ba
EEH EFEE BESE
2001 2001 2001
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (E5)
| J
‘ \
Consumer IT business HBITER 7,368,059 304,362 620,032
Corporate T business ETER 8,872,653 395,875 750,272
Handheld device business FREHEER 117,534 (32,328) 42,238
Contract manufacturing business SEBEES 1,714,978 177,896 494,723 |
internet service business EBIBLES 106,172 (96,327) ]
Others i 9,039,816 167,561 1,943,578
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLATZES - (1,338) -
Amortisation of goodwill ke - (580,877) -
Impairment loss of goodwill ERREEE - (165,640) -
Investments in associated companies e NERE - - 129,040 H‘
investment securities BHLE - - 85,735 ‘
Unallocated assets ROBREE - - 3,962,375
27,219,212 169,184 8,027,993 ,‘
Capital expenditure of HK$455,589,000 (2001: EXMT B 455,589,000t (Z B2 — & B
HK$455,464,000) by business segment was not disclosed as it 455,464,00070) WEBSBTEFRRERSLE
was related to unallocated assets. ERH-
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Notes to the Accounts - RBHE

%

4  Profit from operations 4 BEmR
Group
£13

2002 2001

(Restated)

7 - (EED
(a) Turnover BE 20,853,254 27,219,212 -
Cost of sales ERAR (18,070,813) (23,911,174)1
Gross profit EF 2,782,435 3,308,038
Other revenue HiMA 67,360 103,214
Gains/{losses) on disposal of TEWELR - |
subsidiaries, associated companies B2 ATIRBEEIREZ ‘
and investment securities W/ (E518) 164,240 (1,338),
3,014,035 3,409,914
Distribution expenses DEER (1,320,571) (1 ,565,228”
Administrative expenses TEHER (363,851) (649,376)"
Other operating expenses HiGe g E (162,123) (246,093)
Amortisation of goodwill Bl - (580,877),
Impairment loss of goodwill HBRREEE - (165,640)
Total operating expenses (see (b)) g HaeERDb) (1.916,545)  (3,207,214)
______________ 4
Profit from operations el 1,097,490 202,700
(b) Analysis of total operating BEEREEZ2KLEBRAS ‘

expenses by nature:

Selling expenses HeEB A (382,372) (492,282)1‘
Promotional and advertising EERESER ‘
expenses (397,352) (542,932)
Staff costs (including directors’ ATBRER ]
emoluments) (REEEME) (674,920)  (835,703);
Other expenses EmER (461,901) (589,780):
Amortisation of goodwill g - (580,877)|
Impairment loss of goodwill EERREEE - (165,640)
Total operating expenses LEBHBE (1,916,545) (3,207,214)
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5 rofit before taxation 5 BREALSR

Profit before taxation is BERISEMNEMETIEE ¢ ;
stated after charging the following: !

Auditors’ remuneration EHEAMe 2,811 2,936 ‘}
Depreciation of owned tangible BEEEREESENE ;
fixed assets 143,048 121,826 |
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets FBENBEEZERERE |
held under finance leases BERE - 1,533 “
Rental expenses under operating leases GEEEHzAEITH 88,885 94,701 {[
Research and development expenses MEER 118,744 117,682 J
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets HREEFEATEELER 1,440 31,963 |
Retirement benefit costs (Note 8) BIRERBA (H3E8) 26,025 19,896 ‘J
Impairment loss of fixed assets BT EERERB - 6,946 |
Net exchange loss/(gain) E R AR (W) F8 9,309 (12,489)|
& Finance costs 8 HMERH
Group
=0
2002

Interest payable on bank loans WITERRIEX |

and overdrafts FEATFILE 10,968 31,961 |

Interest element for finance leases PSRNz F S - 136 |
Other interest (Note 29) E R & (HEE29) 817 1,419

L

Total finance costs VB ERESE 11,785 33,516 |
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NOWES 10 bl Aclouns °

A H P RL

Taxation

(@)

(b)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of
16% (2001: 16%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated profit
and loss account represents:

PR
@) EEMNE
R16%(ZFF—F

RERAFEE T ERHEFIIRR
16%) {EBHE »

(b) WEREEE

Hong Kong profits tax

FRMEHR

Overseas taxation FEHMHIR
Overprovision in prior years T FEREEEE
Deferred taxation (Note 25) IEIERE I (MTEE25)
Share of taxation attributable to FE{GER & N RN

associated companies

4,120 11,617 |

20,985 6,864

(1,702) - 1‘

(23) (173):
23,380 18,308
(288) 848

|

23,092 19,156 |

()

Qverseas taxation represents tax charges on the assessable
profits of subsidiaries operating overseas including the PRC,
calculated at rates applicable in the respective jurisdictions.

Pursuant to various approval documents issued by the PRC
tax authority, certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group are
entitled to preferential PRC income tax treatments. Legend
(Beijing) Limited is entitled to preferential PRC income tax
rate of 7.5% for the three years ending 31st December 2003
(three years ended 31st December 2000: nil) while other
major PRC subsidiaries of the Group in Shenzhen, Beijing
and Huiyang are exempted from PRC income tax for two to
three years commencing 1st January 2001 and a 50% PRC
income tax reduction for the following three years.
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Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to a defined contribution retirement
scheme and a local municipal government retirement scheme
which is available to all qualified employees in Hong Kong and
the PRC respectively. Contributions to these schemes are
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries, bonuses,
and allowances.

The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to the profit and
loss account represents contributions payable by the Group to
the schemes.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement
scheme are reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Forfeited contributions totalling HK$247,178
(2001: HK$404,000) were utilised during the year leaving no
amount available at the year end to reduce further contributions.
The assets of the defined contribution scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.

Commencing 1st December 2000, the Group's Hong Kong
employees are required to contribute 5% of their basic salary
plus cashable allowances (subject to the ceiling under the
requirements set out in the Mandatory Provident Fund legisiation})
whereas the employer’s contribution is at 7.5% and 10%
respectively after completion of five and ten years of service.

VBRI

B EEEEERR A R TR 5B
FERE - BT EAARERY TSR - &
FHEZHRHRBER 2T A RERRES
Bt -

FEBENG RS SR AIEEBNZ S8Rk
Tz HER -

Eiz BERE 2 EEFAR EERHFH BT
R BIER A EE 2 HER o SRR HRE AL
247 1787 (ZFE—F « B%404,0007T) ERER
E%o%iﬂaﬁﬂ%Tﬁfﬂﬁﬁ‘—ﬁMﬁﬁ
o TEMATGEIC EEREEC EESREE B
%z% EZESRE -

ECERRE AR AREZEREREAR
BEZEHFERRSED Z5%ELHR (AR ES
ERAREEEZ LFRERZBR)  MEREZHRK
HREFRTFR  BEEZZHRBSRAET 5% R
10% ©
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Notes to the Accounts - fR B K

©

Emeo.uments of directors and higaest paid individuals
(@) The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to directors
of the Group during the year are as follows:

¢ DERESFALZHE
@ ER FEEZEFHLOBOT -

Executive directors

Non-executive directers

HiTHE=E FHATESE
2001 2302

Fees we - - 360 360 |
|
Other emoluments: Hi#ie - "j
Basic salaries, allowances RE - ZBA R ‘
and benefits-in-kind G 33,270 34,125 - - ‘
Retirement benefit costs BRERK K 336 936 - ~
33,656 35,061 360 360 l

Certain directors of the Company have been granted options to
acquire shares of the Company.

The emoluments of the directors disclosed above do not include
the benefits derived or to be derived from the options granted
under the Company’s share option schemes. Details of the share
options granted to and/or exercised by the directors are disclosed
on page 46.

The figures disclosed above include the emoluments paid to two
executive directors who had resigned and an executive director
who had redesignated as a non-executive director during the
year.
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10

Emoiuments of directors and highest paid individuals 9 HERESHALZEE o

continued

(b) The number of directors whose emoluments fall within the b) SEEMESEERAZIT
following bands are as follows:

Executive directors Non-executive directors
YITES FHTES

2002 2001 2002 2001
|
|
From 0 to 1,000,000 ZZ1,000,000 1 - 2 2|
From 3,000,001 10 3,500,000 3,000,001 %3,500,000 - w - _
From 3,500,001 t0 4,000,000 3,500,001%4,000,000 1 1 - -
From 4,000,001 t0 4,500,000 4,000,001%4,500,000 1 - - -
From 5,000,001 ta 5,500,000 5,000,001% 5,500,000 - 1 - - Jf
From 5,500,001 to 6,000,000 5,500,001 %6,000,000 1 2 - -
From 7,500,001 t0 8,000,000 7,500,001 %8,000,000 1 - - _t
From 9,500,007 to 10,000,000 9,500,001 % 10,000,000 - 1 - -
From 11,500,001 to 12,000,000  11,500,001% 12,000,000 i - - -
6 6 2 2

{©) Among the five highest paid employees, all (2001: all) are © ERLuseFMcEE+R 2HCET—F:

executive directors whose remunerations are included in the 2E BRITER  EfieFes Ll EE
directors’ emoluments above. el

Profit attributahle to shareholders 10 REELER

included in the profit of HK$1,044,900,000 (2001: ARORIB R 2 IR FAEH1,044,900,0007L (2 F

HK$113,514,000) attributable to shareholders of the Company T—4F  B¥113,514,0007T) BEIALAREEE
is the profit of HK$752,933,000 (2001: HK$993,460,000), which N2 &R E#752,933,000L (ZBE—F : B
is dealt with in the Company’s own accounts. 993,460,0007T) °
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Notes to the Accounts - BRE M=

11 Dividends

100

11 BE

2002 2001
(Restated)

(&)

Special interim dividend in respect

BAFENEEMIRED

of the spin-off of DCHL RS - 808,538
Interim dividend FREIRE \
1.5 HK cents (2001: 1.1 HK cents) FRAE .50 ‘
oer share (ZTB— B UL 112,846 82,942 |
Proposed final dividend BEARHBRE ‘r‘
3.6 HK cents (2001: 2.4 HK cents) BB 610 \
per share (Note (b)) (ZTE—F : BE2.40) (H:E b)) 271,051 181,732 \J
383897 1073212 |
Notes: Cigza
(a)  The previously recorded special interim dividend and final dividend proposed and fa) REHEEREREREHABEE_SET
F-EZ B EEZEE AR

declared after the balance sheet date but accrued in the accounts for the years
ended 31st March 2000 and 31st March 2001 were HK$133,510,000 and
HK$989,730,000 respectively. Under the Group's new accounting policy as
described in Note 2(s), they have been written back against opening (accumulated
losses)fretained profits as at 1st April 2000 and 2001 in Note 28 and are now

charged in the year in which they were proposed.

(&) At a board meeting held on 23rd May 2002, the directors recommended a final (b)
dividend of 3.6 HK cents per share. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a
dividend payable in these accounts, but will be reflected as an appropriation of

retained earnings for the year ended 31st March 2003.
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12 Earnings per share
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based

on the following data:

12 SREBF

FhEANHE

SBRBMRETIIBETE

2002

Earnings for the purposes of basic and

diluted earnings per share (HK$)

Weighted average number of
shares for the purposes of basic
earnings per share

Effect of potential dilutive shares

Weighted average number of
shares for the purposes of diluted
earnings per share

BN ESRES
REHRFZHF (D)

RN EEBRERRT|
paiil=Relive

EEBEERD

RUAGTESR#EERT
i RS Elive 4

1,044,900,000 113,514,000

7,539,152,6%4 7,459,949,492

36,580,910 56,414,971

7,575,733,604 7,516,364,463 |
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Notes te the Accounts - Rz HE HIRE

13 Tanglzie fied assets 13 AEBREEER
Group £E
Land use
rigats,
leasencld  Leaschoid furniture
laadang  Imavove-  Plantand and Ofiice Motor
butidings ments  machinery fixtures  equipment vehicles Tota!
i
BE-EH By BE BRR HAE
18E8F £ R #3 nE &
: L T e r— : o e
Cost o3
At 15t April 2001 RZZE-F i
RE-A 269,484 81,545 255,899 3,987 382,074 39905 1,032,894 |
Exchange adjustment WERZ 2487 657 2,340 {42) 3423 348 9213 “
Additions HE 41,160 27,119 22,943 7,057 164,226 6,031 268,536
Trangfer from construction- fireTREg ‘
in-progress 187,962 81,638 67,451 - - - 337051 ¢
Disposal of subsidiaries e (19,201) @7,047)  (251,987) (992)  (182,516) (21,881) (523,624)3
Disposals HE {8,769) (14,806) (4,728) (81) (24,504) {2,129) (55,017}
At 315t March 2002 RIEEZF ‘
ZR=t-F 473,123 129,106 91,918 9,929 342,703 22,274 1,069,053 !
Accumulated depreciation and ZFiEREA
impairment
At st April 2001 RoBE-F ‘
nR-H 37,202 40,816 96,225 1,741 116,326 23,007 315,317
Exchange adjustment HEREB 355 27 884 {13) 1,003 201 2659
Charge for the year TEENE 11,439 11,089 25,9% 3,437 87,126 3,961 143,048 ;
Disposal of subsidiaries LERBLF (11,048)  {(19794)  {104,160) (693)  (67872)  (14379)  (217.946),
Disposals HE - (10,941) (2,231) (58) (7,751) (360) (21,341)
At 315t March 2002 RIBE-F
ZA=+-4 37,948 21,397 16,716 4,414 128,832 12,430 221,737 |
Net book value BERE
At 315t March 2002 RIBRCE
ZR=+-8 435,175 107,709 75,202 5515 213871 9,344 847,316 “
At 315t March 2001 RZTE-% ‘
=) = 232,282 40,729 159,674 2,246 265,748 16,898 711,577 ;
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13 Tangible fixed assels continved 13 ERBEEEE
Company nE

Leasehold  Furniture

improve- and Office Motor
ments fixtures equipment vehicles Total
kL BRR ROE

£ #£3 RE

Cost o %
At 1st April 2001 RIEE-FMA—H 4,760 671 3,345 915 9,691 |
Additions FE 130 9 142 - 281 |
Disposals HE - - (4) (585) (589)
At 31st March 2002 R-_EE-E=A=+—RH 4,890 680 3,483 330 9,383 p
Accumulated depreciation BirERRE J“
and impairment l
At 1st April 2001 K-EE-FmMA—H 1,949 210 1,534 285 3,978 |
Charge for the year TEERE 1,709 122 530 94 2,505 |
Disposals HE - - {4) (265) (269)jj
At 31st March 2002 NW_BE-F=[=+—8 3,658 332 2,110 114 6,214 |
Net book value RERE
|
At 31st March 2002 R-BE-E=F=+-81 1,232 348 1,373 216 3,169 |
|
At 31st March 2001 RoBE-EZA=+-A 2,811 461 1,811 630 5,713 |
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nNotes to the Accounts ° e dE ML

13 Tangible fixed assets continved 13 BREEZRE «
(@) The net book value of land use rights, leasehold land and (a) THERE BHIHREFZERRER
buildings comprises: &
Group
2002 2001

PRC

(excluding

Hong Hong
Kong Kong) Total

R

s

Long leases RHBOME
(not less than (FoRAR+E) ,
50 years) 3,916 - 3,916 2,395 - 2,395 h

Medium leases FERR KR ‘
(less than 50 (DRETE 1
years but not BER LR+ ‘
less than 10 |
years) - 431,259 431,259 - 229,887 229,887 h

i
3,916 431,259 435,175 2,395 229,887 232,282 ¢
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14 Construction-in-progress 4 ERIRE

Construction-in-progress comprises: FEIEEE
Plant and Group
Properties under machinery under %6
development installation Total
BRPYE RETRERER =5

2002

HKE TR

2002
000

At 1st April 2001 RIEE-F 149,115 31,529 50,869 24,237 199,984 55,766 !
mA—H i
Exchange

adjustment ShETRE 1,406 - 507 - 1,913 -
Additions RE 143,532 122,514 43,521 48,222 187,053 170,736 ‘
Transfer to BEBW |

tangible fixed BEEE
assets (269,600) (4,928} (67.451) (21,590) (337,051) (26,518)
Disposal of a HEHB j
subsidiary NG - - (8,033) - (8,033) -
!
At 31st March 2002 RZZEE= }‘
=A=+-—8 24,453 149,115 19,413 50,869 43,866 199,984 {

No interest expenses were capitalised in construction-in-progress REEBUEERTIZZNES L TIRERIL -
at the balance sheet date.
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NOTes (0 tne ACcounts ° kY HIET

75 Subsidiaries

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

15 M

(a) RMLARZHRE

Company
nE

Unlisted shares, at cost

ELTRG - KAE

2,327,875

2,327,975 w‘

The following includes the principal subsidiaries of the Company

which were directly and indirectly held by the Company and, in

the opinion of the directors, significant to the results of the year

or form a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. The

directors considered that giving details of other subsidiaries would

result in particulars of excessive length.

Place of
L

-
Vo

esiaslishment

crperation/

lssued and fully

2aid up shares

THEERAAATERREEREZTENEAT) -
EERORENBLOTEAFREXERERERM X
EREAEBEEFEZET—EERD - EERAR
HIRMHBAR AN ESIHRELR -

Effective

Company name =M ERTR percentage holding Principal activities
DEARE oo A= LSRRG i gt FEHB
Held dlirectly:
EEHE -
Legend (Beijing} Limited PRC HK$78,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and distribution
BEQLR) BRAR H B of computer products
and provision of
IT services
BERpHERER
REREERMERS
Legend (Shanghai) PRC HK$10,000,000 100% 100% Distribution of computer
Limited HE et products and provision of
BREEERRA IT services
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15 Subsidiaries continued

(a) Investments in subsidiaries connved

16 MERF

(a) RWEREZRE &

Place of
incorporation/ issued and fully
establishment paid up shares Effeciive
Company name B30 BEITR percentage holding Principal activities
REEBE AR 2 BERS et 2R FTEER
[ W2 2%
Held indirectly:
FERE
Beijing Legend Software PRC HK$5,000,000 100% - Systems integration and
Limited* R ot distribution of T products
B EHER AR SR RS WARFHER
Huiyang Legend Industry PRC US$2,040,000 100% 100% Property holding and
Property Limited* HE EN property management
EBRRIENERRLOA REREENZR
Legend (Chengdu} PRC RMB12,000,000 100% 100% Distribution of computer
Limited # PN products and provision af
B8 (W) BRATE IT services
SEENERRREHERME RS
Legend Computer Hong Kong HKS2 100% 100% Procurement agent
Systems Limited BE BE and distribution of
BEEMESERRA computer products
FRAEROHERER
Legend (Huiyang) PRC HK$16,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Electronic Industrial FE ek computer products
Co., ltd. HEENER
EBHEEFIEERAR
Legend Industrial PRC US$10,000,000 100% 100% Property holding and
Development Co,, hE eV property management

(Daya Bay) Ltd *
BETREXER
(KTE BB RA

BREREENE
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Notes to the Accounts = Rz 8 &t

15 Subsidiaries continved

(a) Investments in subsidiaries continued

Place of

incorporation/ lssued and fully

15 MLIAR &

(a) RMELEZEE »

establishmant neid up shares EHective
Company name = 2EITR percentage holding  Principal activities
NCIECE: Jadva:re ZERG FEfE R o R =34
Legend (Shenyang) PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Distribution of computer
Limited mE AEH products and provision of
B2 (2R) R AR IT services
AHENER REMEARERS
Legend (Shenzhen) PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Distribution of
Electronic Company Ltd* HE ARE computer products
BE RN EFRERRE PHEMER
Legend (Wuhan) Limited* PRC RMB1,500,960 100% - Distribution of computer
BREEERA HE ARE products and provision of
IT services
SESHERRRGERRERS
Legend (Xi An) Limited* PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Distribution of computer
HIE(ER) ERAT HE ARE products and provision of
1T services
SHEHERRREEANEERS
Shanghai Legend PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - Manufacturing of
Electronic Co., Ltd * RE ARE computer products
LEBEEFERAE HEBHER
QD! Europe B.V. The Netherlands NLG40,000 100% 100% Distribution of
HE wEBE computer products
DHEBEESR
Quantum Designs Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary and 100% 100% Procurement agent and
(H.K.) Limited &3 HK$1,000,000 distribution of
non-voting computer products
deferred I'%Téﬁéﬁfi&
EH2TzEBRE FEEMER
75%51,000,0007C
ZEREREER
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15 Subsidiaries continved 15 MGAF &

(a) Investments in subsidiaries continved (a) RMIERRAZRE &
Notes: it
(i) All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their respective places of 0 HELEHBLREET MBI EE -

incorporation or establishment.

(i) All the PRC subsidiaries are limited liability companies. They have adopted G EERENEAEBEREALE - EFEEE  F
31st December as their financial year end date for statutory reporting ERFINEEF A=+ —A5EHAE BEHEH-FF
purposes. For preparation of the consolidated accounts, accounts of these —ER-FFE= FEREARREEEEE
subsidiaries for the 12 months ended 31st March 2001 and 2002 have been AEABE=F=1+—AZF=EREHE -
used.

(i) The company whose name with a “*" is a direct transliteration of its Chinese (i) REEEE v BE - DEESHWELZPXNESE -

registered name.

(b) Amounts due from/(tc) subsidiaries (b) FEU () HBARKE
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed IS EERE £ EREETEIELY -

term of repayment.

16 Investments in jointly controlled entities 16 REARERIEZRE

Share of net assets FIhEESE 210,432 -
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16 Investments in jointly centrolled entities continued 16 AHRREEMTEZERE o
The following is a list of the principal jointly controlled entities at ITARZBEZEZ A=+ A EXREHE
31st March 2002: BERE .
Pate of

4 - b
incerporatien/

astezlishment ‘nterest
Cemzany name i feld indlirectly Frincival acilvities
RAEB R BERERER FEHY
FM365.com Limited (Note Fff 55() British Virgin Islands 51% 100% investment holding company of
RELBREE Internet service business
REERELRB RERERAT
Leby Technology Company British Virgin islands 50% - Investment holding company of
Limited (Note (ii) RERARES contract manufacturing business
SEREARRE (H ) WEEFEEEB I RERRAR

Notes: FisE -

0] Although the Group holds 51% issued share capital of FM365.com Limited, 1) BESR A NFBFM365.com Limited 251% S5 {THRA - BITE
its board is jointly controlled by the Group and a joint venturer such that it is GROEFEURES—EAEFHFREER - EigEH—FKLF
regarded as a jointly controlfed entity. This company holds 100% equity interests TES o it D AR I SA AR 2 FIEY100%4A%
in Beijing Legend FM365 Technology Limited which provides Internet services EFEXBRTTEE BRRFS -
in the PRC.

(i) This jointly controlled entity holds 100% equity interests in Hui Yang Legend (i) e A TR B S DB R A SIB100%3E - B
Computer Co., Ltd. which manufactures computer products in the PRC. FEFBTEPERIEUNER -

{iii The company whose name with a "*" is a direct transliteration of its English (i) DEEEE T E - DERSAMEBNCETER -

registered name.
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17 Associated companies 17

(a) Investments in associated companies

Group
£B
2002 2001
(Restated)
(&5

L2

L
Share of net assets FHGEEFE
Loans to associated companies, ERTEERT)

unsecured Eai i

\
152,372 127,240 |
|
|

51,834% 1,800
204,206 129,040 |

* Included in this bafance is a foan of HK$50,034,000 which is bearing interest at
prime rate minus 0.5% per annum. The remaining balance is interest-free.

The following is a list of the principal associated companies at

* B B FE— I A550,034,000T.2 B - B EFIE B E(TET
EF0.5% BB ENZEFIEA -

RITFF=ZA=+—HZEEBHELTMT

31st March 2002:

Place of

incorporation/ Interest held

Company name establishment indirectly Principal activities

AR EB 3P aA: 2 BMEsEEs ERE

Beijing CA ~ Legend PRC 20% 50% Software
Software Co., Ltd* FEH development

IR EREBERGER AT LaqkaroE

Legend Kingsoft British Virgin Islands 30% 30% Distribution and development
Holdings Limited EEERRES of software

B IZRER RG> DB R EE

Techwise Circuits Company Hong Kong 30.5% 85.5% Procurement agent and
Limited {(formerly, Legend TE distribution of printed
Techwise Circuits Limited) circuit boards

MEREER AT RE - FEERUE Ry SREAR
EER BB AR LA

The Affiliated High School of PRC 49% 49% Operation of education portal
Peking University & Legend 7 REHE WL
Remote Education Co., Ltd.*

bR A M R8RS
BEARRLA

Yestock Ltd. British Virgin Islands 40% 40% Provision of Internet service

EERBRES

RHERERE
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17 Associzied companies continved 17
(a) Investments in associated companies continued
Notes:

(i) The associated companies aperate principally in their respective places of
incorporation or establishment, except for Legend Kingsoft Holdings Limited
and Yestock Ltd. which operate principally in the PRC.

(i) The company whose name with a “=" is a direct transliteration of its Chinese/
English registered name.

BHEDQTE o
(a) RBEEQRZBEs
fEE -

()  BREBESUITRERRERYestock Lid, FERFELLES)
BERAEBEREGEE MBI BATE -

(i) LREEEE v HE DEHESERBLEZEXRXE

e

(b) Loan to a related company — Company (b) ERF—HBELT - AF
The loan was granted by the Company in previous year to HEEREHARNREET REENE
an associated company of a wholly-owned subsidiary (2001: REMBEDRR (ZEE-—F : EREBHE
loan of HK$114,308,000 to a subsidiary of the Company). 114,308,0007t T AR BRI —RMBAF) «
The amount is unsecured and bearing interest at prime rate HEHEREERARENEZASEIMNER
minus 0.5% per annum. 0.5% °
18 [nvastmen? securities 18 BHERE
Equity securities, at fair value RAEES  2FE
Listed in Hong Kong REFELET 238 238
Listed outside Hong Kong REBENET 19,271 77,697
19,509 77,935 |
Unlisted b 11,253 7,800 |
30,762 85,735 |
12 Inventorizs 19 #E
Raw materials B 395,518 510,911 |
Work-in-progress EEG 18,175 50,945 |
Finished goods S m 441,826 1,539,256
855,519 2,101,112 ;

At 31st March 2002, the carrying amount of inventories that are
carried at net realisable value amounted to HK%$43,094,000
(2001: HK$123,804,000).
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20

21

22

Amounts due from jointly controlled entities — Group 20
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on
demand.

Accounts recelvable 21
At 31st March 2002, the ageing analysis of the accounts
receivable were as follows:

EUHEEFEIIRAR - 80
RRLEER  RRERREREFERN -

R BR R
RIBZEZF-A=+—8  EBUERRZERESINR
T

Group
2002
B FIKS'000
0 - 30 days 2=+ 611,064 1,248,743
31 - 60 days =+-BZx+8 58,914 257,662 |
61 - 90 days At—BEATH 5,715 62,752 |
Over 90 days At =1 2,651 176,695 |

€78,344 1,745,852 |

Customers are generally granted credit terms of 30 days. Credit
terms for customers of systems integration business normally
range from 30 days to 180 days.

Cash and banlk balances - Group and Company 22
Included in the cash and bank balances of the Group are Renminbi
cash and bank deposits in the PRC of approximately
HK$746,392,000 (2001: HK$643,133,000).

REFFEBEIRNES  REREXNFFEAF30
EI80RNAEEREI  EHRFFP—REFOKIE
FIEA -

RERMBITHE — SURDH

TEBECRe RFTESY  REEREEAZAR
IR & RIRITERL BEET746,392,000 (ZEF
—%F : E#643,133,00070) o
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23 Accounts vayabie 23 FEIBRR
At 31st March 2002, the ageing analysis of the accounts payable RIET-H=R=+—0  BENERRZEESTN
were as follows: T
Group
ae 2001
HKSEOE ¢
R P ‘
0 - 30 days = 1,101,100 1,754,351 ‘
31 - 60 days =+—=x+8 177,413 136,744 |
61 - 90 days Rt—ENTE 27,433 33,698 |
|
Over 90 days ATEBE 30,785 354,011
]|
'
1,336,731 2,278,804 J\
24 lLong-term labilities 24 ERHEAML
Group Company
&0 N

Unsecured bank loans EFFRITER - 813,084* - -
I
Loans from minority WBrmZ L8R i
shareholders of a REZ (@)
subsidiary (Note (a)) - 19,385 - -
Less: current portion of B RHBEEZ ‘
long-term liabilities FREEERS - (816,709) - -
|
- 15,760 - -1
Deferred taxation (Note 25) EXEF{IA (FiiE25) 330 353 304 304 |
330 16,113 304 304 |
Note (a). The loans from minority shareholders are unsecured, bearing interest at prime it (a) 0 ML BREERBELEITEY - EHELRFITHEENER
rate minus 0.5% per annum and repayable within 5 years. 0.5% - SEREE -
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24 Llong-term liabilities continued 24 REEfIw
At 31st March 2002, the Group’s bank loans and obligations RITE-F=A=+—8  FTEEEERTERR
under finance leases were repayable as follows: FHERHBEEERANT ¢

Loans from minority
shareholders of

Bank loans a subsidiary

(unsecured) —BEMEARZ
HTER (REH) DEBRRER
2002

|
Amounts repayable: BEERE S8 ‘f“
On demand or within EBHAERN ;’
one year - 813,084* - 3,625 |
After one year but within —FEMF ‘1
two years - - - 4,350 |
After two years but within MEERF ‘;
five years - - - 11,410 ‘4
- 813,084 - 19,385 |
*  This balance is related to Digital China Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries which * REESDEREMNEEERERLERENELR ER-FE
were spun off from the Group on 1st June 2001. ENF-BFREFEL) -
25 Deferred taxation 25 REFIH
Group Company
£ AT

Balance at the beginning F iR 353 641 304 304 ;
of the year 1

Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBAT - (115) - -

(Note 36) (Fit3E36)
353 526 304 304
Transferred from EABEER
profit and loss account (23) (173) - -
330 353 304 304

LEGEND ANNUAL REPORT 2001002 HEFH 11%




Notes to the Accounts = RRB M

26 Share capital

26 B&

Ordinary shares of HX$0.025 each

EBRSRERC025T

2002 2001

Numiger

Authorised: EERA
At st April REUA—8 !
and 31st March EZB=Z+—H 20,000,000,000 500,000 20,000,000,000 500,000
%
|
Issued and fully paid: BEETRERRE :
At 1st April REA—A 7.,513,962,108 187,849 7,401,203,524 185,030 |
Issue and allotment of shares BT REERD - - 11,478,584 287
Exercise of share options TR
(Note (b)) (HT5E(b)) 66,302,000 1,658 101,280,000 2,532 ‘
Repurchase of shares Bk ]
Il
{Note (<)) (Btz£(0) (72,226,000) (1,806) - -
i
At 31st March BZF=+—-8 7,508,038,108 187,701 7,513,962,108 187,849 :

Notes: Hfst

(@} Under the Company’s Employee Share Option Scheme adopted on 18th January (@) BEARIR—-ANTE—E--NBRN 2 BRIESR - AL
1994, the Company granted options to emplayees (including directors) of the HEETAARREMDARZES (BIFER) BVE - Bk
Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a RS TEMBRAREBITREAZ10%  BiH 2 BRET &
maximum of 10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time BREEANIE R SR T E BT - BAMER D 2 REE
Options granted are exercisable at any time during a period of ten years from the EROEEREEREEEL SENRERS BRG 2 TR
date upon which the option is accepted. The subscription price of the option shares MEOUMER ZREETH -
is the higher of the nominal value of the shares and an amount which is 80% of
the average of the closing prices of the shares on the five trading days immediately
preceding the date on which the offer is made.

(b)  During the year, 32,000,000, 7,910,000, 174,000, 25,712,000 and 506,000 shares by FA - BATERDEERERETZR7532,000,000 -
were issued at HK$0.453, HK$2.876, HK$2.904, HK$4.038 and HK$4.312 per 7,910,000 + 174,000 * 25,712,0005%506,00083 8845 « S RIAB
share respectively as a resuit of the exercise of share options of the Company. H50.4597T - B 2.8765T - BIE2.9047T - iBHE4.038T RIE

4312787 -

(¢)  During the year, the Company repurchased 72,226,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.025 (0 FA - RAFLUBERER263,761 000 TR ERKEZ M
each on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at an aggregate price of BRLBIEET2,226,0000 BREEEK0.025T 2 FB -
HK$263,761,000.

(d)  Please refer to the Directors’ Report for the details of repurchase of shares and (d) EHBOBMHRBRETEHZEE  B2EHEEeRsE -

share option scheme.
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27 Reserves

Group Company
= AE]
2332 2001 2202
| HREE00 WS 000
i FBEF R #

Share premium account RADEER
As at 1st April REA—H 4,589,893 4,403,611 4,589,893 4,403,611
Issue of new shares BLTHERR G 142,291 186,351 142,291 186,351
New issue expenses BIHRNER - (69) - (69)!
As at 31st March =—A=+—8 4,732,184 4,589,893 4,732,184 4,589,893
Surplus arising on SERERES

consolidation 2B
As at 1st April as RIEA—H - IZAE

previously reported ] - 32,933 - -
Effect of adopting FR Bt B &R

SSAP 31 BN E 165,921 281 - -
Divestment of interest in BOR—R !

an associated company BERAREE 5,794 - - -
As at 1st April as restated REUA—H i”ﬂ 171,715 33,214 - -
Goodwill arising from WEHEL !

acquisition of subsidiaries k- %Hﬁﬁ% Gl

and associated companies EEEE - (199,279) - -
Goodwill written back/(off) HEMBLRAE—R (

arising from disposal of ﬁ*éﬁ?ﬁwqﬂ e,/ !

subsidiaries and an associated (k) 2 EE 1

company 22,897 (373) - -
Divestment of interest in BLR—R

an associated company BERFNRE - 5,794 - -
Transfer from other reserve TEMEREEA - 166,719 - -
Effect of adopting FNeHERE])

SSAP 31 B3R FE - 165,640 - -
Reversal of transfer HEE

from other reserve HEEA {166,719) - - -
As at 31st March as restated NZA=+—-8 " E%| 27,893 171,715 - - ‘

_____________________________ .

Exchange reserve EHEE
As at Tst April HOEA—R 336 1,464 - -
Movement during the year ERE 3,819 (1,128) - -
As at 31st March R=H= 4,155 336 - -
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Reserves continued

27 &% o

Group
£
2001

Company

/'\E‘]

2032

2001

Investment revaluation
reserve

As at 1st April

Deficit in fair market value
of investment securities

Revaluation surplus on
spin-off of DCHL

Reserves transferred to
(accumulated losses)y
retained earnings on
spin-off of DCHL

Reserves realised upon
disposal of investment
securities

Transfer to other reserve

Reversal of transfer to
other reserve

As at 31st March

Share redemption reserve

As at 1st April
Mavement during the year

As at 31st March

Total

REEMMHER

REHAE—H
BRHFLTHE
B

m

P2

]

Fa

335

AnFipMEBmER

M B

*AﬁWMﬁfﬁﬁﬁ
ZETEE /{%Eﬁg gl

HEBHREY
2 Eluﬂ{%

EEHMER
FOESEM
e

=R=+—H

BOEEHE

%EH—E

- 70,005 -

(36,058) (6,914) - .

- - 108,131 i

L

- - (109,131) -i
(13,518) - - _

- (63,091) - -

i

63,091 - - -\

13,515 - - o

e e e e e e e e e  m e e = — _i

|

1,806 - 1,806 -
1,806 - 1,806 -
4779553 4761944 4733880 4,589,393
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28 (Accumulated losses) /retained profits 28 (EFEHE) RERF

Group Company
£ G|
2002 2001 2072
[HISSH600)
¥ -

{Accumulated losses)/ (BitEa)

Retained profits REER
As at 1st April as previously  RIA—B © MZH ‘
reported 27! 30,866 347,135 378,388 457,600 |
Effect of adopting RNETEBERFER {
SSAP 9 (revised) (g eie 989,730 133,510 989,730 133,510 }
Effect of adopting Hing s B5 el
SSAP 29 FRHE (1,887,850)  (1,306,973) - -
Effect of adopting TR ERERFEH {‘
SSAP 31 ZEE {199,617) (33,977) - -
As at 1st April as restated HEA—H &7 (1,066,871) (860,305) 1,368,118 591,110 |
Dividend paid and B RS
payable ) (1,103,116) 216,452)  (1,103,116) (216,452)
Repurchase of shares BEkm (263,761) - (263,761) -
Profit for the year E R 1,044,900 113,514 752,933 993,460 ‘
Transfer to other reserve BERHEMEE - (103,628) 109,131 -
Reversal of transfer to SRS E A b |
other reserve 103,628 - - - ”
As at 315t March RZA=+—R  Z5 J‘
as restated (1,285,220) (1,066,871) 863,305 1,368,118 i
Representing: e
Special interim BESAIREES i
dividend proposed - 808,000 - 808,000
Final dividend proposed FURRERR B 271,051 181,730 271,051 181,730
Other Efe (1,556,271)  (2,056,601) 592,254 378,388 |
I
As at 31st March as restated W= A=+—8 « &7 {1,285,220)  (1,066,871) 863,305 1,368,118
Company and its subsidiaries A7 EEHB AT (1,275,955) (1.061,829) 863,305 1,368,118 |
lointly controlled entities HEESEE 8,468 - - - '&
Associated companies BEDT) (17,733) (5,042) - - ;
As at 31st March as restated R=A=+—8 ' &7 (1,285,220} (1,066,871} 863,305 1,368,118
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29 Related garty transactions

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this set of accounts, the Group
had the following material related party transactions in the normal

course of business:

29 ARALXS
BREARR B AR BB
THEABBEALRS

TEEE—REBTE

2001

LHL
{the ultimate holding company):
Management and maintenance fee
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Disposal of properties

Right Lane Limited
(a substantial shareholder)
Rental and management fee

Legend Properties (Daya Bay) Co. Ltd.
(a fellow subsidiary):
Rental expenses

Minority shareholders
of a subsidiary:
Interest expense (Note 6)

D-Link Group (group companies
of a minority shareholder of
a former subsidiary):
Purchase of goods

DCHL Group (associated companies
of the ultimate holding company)
Rental and management fees
Purchase of goods

Techwise Circuits Company Limited and
its subsidiaries (associated companies):
Purchase of goods

Beijing Legend FM Science and
Technology Company Limited
(a fellow subsidiary):

Account access fees

Shenzhen Legend Science Park
Company Limited
(a fellow subsidiary):
Rental

Beijing Legend FM365 Technology
Limited (a jointly controlled entity):
Technical consultancy fees

BRI B R DA
(BRI AT -
EEREEZER -
BE-REWELFR -
HEWE -

BERARAA
(FEERR) :
HEREEER

BEEMAE (KRB BRAF
(—HKREEMBERR]) :
Gk -

—HEARZ
DEERE
T BRI (HEE6) 817

REEE G5 EAEEA
HELTZ LR
ZEBAF) :
REEY

HINBBRE (&RIERAF
REEE LT
HEREEER
REEY

NEE%ERAT
REWBAF @HEAD)
SEEY

L REBE AR BB LT
(~REFHELE) :
EFEAE

1,020

61,859

2,813
13,519

15,255

50,330

BREBXEERAT
—HKEEHMERRD :
iy
3,088

LR A = R AR ER A F]
(~RAREFIER) -
REBHE 176

468 ¢
102,810 |
1,490

3,716 |
I

1,419

221,602
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29 Related party transactions continued 29 BERAXRXE &
The directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were EFRRLUR S NE—REBHIZBE—MEEKR

conducted on normal commercial terms in the ordinary course HIT o
of business.
30 Banking facilities 30 ﬁﬁﬁf—'ﬁ

At 31st March 2002, total banking facilities granted to the Group WEE-—£-R=+—0  ~EECaEEETE
amounted to approximately HK$2,485,000,000 which were %%@%E%@%%%ZAE%S,OOO,OOOE WA T 5| eh—

secured by one or more of the following: TES %8 A AERRTER
(a) Cross guarantees provided by certain subsidiaries; and (a) BETHBATIRE TMRER &
{b) Guarantees provided by the Company. (o) BADFIREZEER-

At 31st March 2002, the amount of facilities utilised by the Group w

“EZT-F=ZA=+—8B  rEEHEHBEZIERETE
amounted to approximately HK$419,000,000. 4

B4 B #%419,000,0007T °
31 Commitments 31 &
(a) Capital commitments (a) BAEE
\ -
|
Contracted but not provided for EETHEREE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BBEREE 28,850 -
Investments R”E 183,082 — !
211,932 -
The Group’s share of capital FEBEG b ﬂ;
~ |
commitments for property, plant PASPZ BE R AR Z 95 |
and equipment of associated BENRBELER f
companies not included in the EPEINT J
above is as follows: ‘
Contracted but not provided for TETHE R B 1,060 -
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37 Commitments continued 31 &G4
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) KWEHENAIE

At 31st March 2002, the Group had future aggregate WZZEE_E=ZR=+—H FTEENTE

minimum lease payments in respect of land and buildings HZ T REFIREHOT2AREERSE
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: LREAT

2002 2001

Restated

g7

B

Not later than one year TRB—E 65,792 74,752 |
Later than one year but —FEREF |
not later than five years 75,620 70,994 :
Later than five years HBRTE - - i?
|

141,412 145,746

(©) Asat 31st March 2002, the Group had outstanding foreign © » A=+—1 Z&EEEFZI

R EHRER 56,000,000 7T (ZET—
m

contracts amounted to approximately HK$56,000,000 Ea
(2001: Nil). F 48| o
32 Contingent labilities 32 HAREL
(a) The Company has executed guarantees with respect to (@) BRREHMETEAMBRARZRITHEELE
banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries. As at Ro-MR_BE_F=HA=+—HEZBETEIE
31st March 2002, such facilities granted and utilised ZERD IR L BB, 485,000,000 T K&
amounted to approximately HK$2,485,000,000 and 419,000,0007T

HK$419,000,000 respectively.

(b) The Company has issued letters of guarantee to the suppliers (b) ARFEBLEERETENEARINHE

and vendors of its subsidiaries. As at 31st March 2002, the Bo-R-FE-F=ZAZ+—-HEETEE
guarantee granted and utilised amounted to approximately B ZERS AL A%E854,000,000 T
HK$854,000,000 and HK$272,000,000 respectively. #£272,000,0007T °
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cash inflow from operating activities

33 Reconciliation of operating profit before taxation to net 33 BREAT

utlt

2002

BIREEREAESRESFRERR

2001
Restated

-

=75

Operating profit before taxation

Share of losses of
associated companies

Share of profits of jointly controlled
entities

Interest income

Interest expense and finance charges
under finance leases

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Amortisation of goodwill

impairment loss of goodwifl

Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets

Provision for impairment of fixed assets

(Gains)/losses on disposal of subsidiaries,

associated companies and

investment securities
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Increase in accounts receivable,

deposits, prepayments

and other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable,

accruals and other payables

Net cash inflow from operating activities

)?’Ef:SE %ATZEE?E

FEIE HEHIEHI B 2 BT

FEMA
R8RS
ZENRERR
BEVEEEENE
Bk =
BEHEEE
HEBVEEEEZER
EEEWE‘?E{%
HEMBERR  BERRR
EHREZ
W) B8
TR, B
FEUERR - &
B FER A
fE W BR R IE A0
RN BABAR
Hfo TR Ol ) /10

REEBAERSFE

1,087,194
12,978
(8.468)
(67,360)  (103,214)|
|
11,785 33,516
143,048 123,359
- 580,877
- 165,640 |
1,440 31,963 |
- 6,946
(164,240) 1338 |
261,620 (383,341)]
(215,908)  (753,914)
(246,600) 898,589 |
809,490 770,943 ”
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34 Analysis of changes in financing

34 BELZBDN

Lozns and Share
nance capital
f=zse  (including

2 o premium)
R
(BL3E ()

LERE

2001

Minority
interests

Loans and
finance
[ease

cbligations
TR ET Y

Balance at the
beginning
of the year

Minority interests’
share of profits
and exchange
reserve

Increase in minority
interests

Increase in
bank loans

Disposal of
subsidiaries

(Decrease)/increase
in loans from
minority
shareholders

Payments of capital
element of
finance leases

Issue of new shares

Issue of new shares
for non-cash
considerations

Consideration for
the repurchase
of shares

Repurchase of
shares out
of retained
profits

New issue expenses

Balance at the end
of the year

ENEETE

LEBRR
RN
FMRINERS
&

DY EES
#En

IRITEFIL N

BEARIZHE

LHRER
T

CRL) /&

BEEEAELD
ZEE

FITHRL
BIIERS
REFRI
AR5 EIE 2 1< 8
SRR
EIRERR(S
HIRAER

ERETT

4,777,742 74,458 832,469 4,588,641 10,506 189,534 |
- 13,202 - - 29,886 -

- 4,364 (4,364) - 34,287 -

|

- - 21485 - - 633645 |

- (24974)  (944,760) - (221) (7,477

- - (4,840) - - 19,385 |

‘

- - - - - (2,618)|
143,949 - - 87,068 - -
- - - 102,102 - .

(263,761) - - - - .

f

261,955 - - - - i

- - - (69) - -

4,919,885 7,050 - 4777742 74458 832,469 |
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35 Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

35 RERSRRELEFIN

Cash and bank balances

R RRITHES

2,633,651

36 Disposal of subsidieries

38 HEMLAT

2001

Disposal of net assets
Fixed assets
Construction-in-progress
Accounts receivable
nventories
Prepayment, deposits and

other receivables

Cash and bank balances
Accounts and bills payable
Accruals and other payables
Bank loans
Deferred taxation
Minority interests

Reserve on consolidation
Gains/(Josses) on disposal

Satisfied by:
Cash and cash equivalents
Dividends payable
Investments

Accruals

HEEEFE
BExEE

TEgTRE

FEUBR R

T
BRER - EeR
H b FEUTK

He RRITHES

FETERTB R ENERE
FEET B A R AMER R
RITER
EERE

SRR ER

FENELZREE
ez (EE)

AR
HehERRS
AR
wE
ERTER

305,678 5,636
8,033 -
1,311,570 136,085 |
983,973 49,939 |
205,692 16,558
356,261 41,932
(794,216)  (102,306)
(449,398)  (122,070)
(944,760) (7,477)
- (115)
(84,974) (221
|

897,859 17,961 |
i

‘i

- (373)]
155,538 (1,338)]
]

1,053,397 16,250 °
229,021 16,250
808,538 -
70,899 -
(55,061) -
—]

1,053,397 16,250 |
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37 Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash eguivalents 37 HEMDARMEZRSRSRARSTEIY
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries

Cash consideration ReRE 229,021 16,250 1
Cash and bank balances disposed of HEZRSNBITES (356,261) (41,932)
“
Net outflow of cash and HERBELR \
cash equivalent in respect of FHEZEER
the disposal of subsidiaries ERIBEEHE (127,240) (25,682)"
38 Acquisition of a subsidiary 38 WEKISAR

—
Net assets acquired BREBEEE !
Tangible fixed assets ERETEEE - 97,789
Inventories =g - 811
Accounts payable and accruals EBAERREGER - (738)|
- 97,862
Goodwill arising from acquisition WEgma - 4,948
Satisfied by: XHAR ‘
Cash Re - 102,810 !
3% Ultimate holding company 30 RRERAT
The directors regard EX 28122 BTR 2 8], a company established EERABBERERAADERRERAS
in the PRC, as being the ultimate holding company. NG avAl
40 Approval of accounts 40 BREZ®E
The accounts were approved by the board of directors on 23rd FEECHEFER TR FRA-t=A%E
May 2002.
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Unaudited Prororma Consolicated Protit ana Loss Account = REZ%EZ 4R

For the year ended 31st March 2002

TEER

BE_FF_F-A-HHULERE

2002 2001
(Restated)
(ieu
! ERSER00 5
[ BEER
Turnover R 19,267,384 18,665,139 |
Farnings before interest, BRFLE - FRIE - 31
taxation, depreciation FEREER
and amortisation expenses FEEEF 972,580 739,820
Depreciation expenses wEEH (137,980) (104,964)
Amortisation of goodwill AR - (580,877)
Impairment loss of goodwill BHEREER - (165,640) J‘
Interest income FLB WA 66,664 139,767
Gains/ (losses} on disposal LEWEQ
of subsidiaries, E”M’“T
associated companies REHIREZ
and investment securities Wz (BE) 164,240 (1,338) |
|
Profit from operations HEEEF 1,065,504 26,768
Finance costs BRES (1,676) (18,247) |
1,063,828 8,521
|
Share of profits of jointly FE{S FE 4 1
controlled entities BEEEF 8,468 -
Share of losses of associated FEIERE
companies REIEE (12,979) (6,628)
Profit before taxation Ciry-0pival 1,059,317 1,893
Taxation FiIB (23,092) (19,156)
|
Profit/(loss) after taxation BBEEF (BB 1,036,225 (17,263) |
Minority interests VBT R R (9,768) (10,944)
ProfitAloss) attributable to WREEGETF (BE8)
shareholders 1,026,457 (28,207)
Dividends % 2 383,897 264,674 ¢
Earnings/(loss) per share FREF(EE)
- Basic —EXK 13.61 centsfil  (0.38) centsfill
- Fully diluted —-TEES 13.35 centsfll  (0.38) centsfil |

The unaudited proforma consolidated results of the Group for FTEEEE_FET—HR-F 7_$ R=+—H1t

the years ended 31st March 2001 and 2002 have been prepared FEZREEZBBHLHE  DRESHFERM

as if the spin-off of DCHL Group had been completed as at 31st HESEN_ETEF-A=+—HEETHTR J
March 2000. e
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The following table summarises the results, assets and liabilities TRACERAFFEVMHRFEZ 4 - EEREBE
of the Group for the last five financial years. BE -

Pro‘orra

2302 W01 2000 1999 1998
(Restated) (Res*a‘eo (Restaied;

=z, A
=) H-y =}

|
Turnover 2% 20,853,254 27,219,212 17,449,649 11,633,573 5,870,993 7,995,327 ‘
Eamings before interest, BAE - HE

taxation, depreciation nER ﬂﬁﬁ

and amortisation expenses EEEF 1,008,938 970,700 603,278 384,940 194,800 380,973
Depreciation expenses NEER (143,048) {123,359} (93,275) (72,198) {43,455 (51,428) }

I

Amortisation of goodwill TEEE - (580,877} (580,877} (580,877} (145.219) {145.219) i
Impairment loss of goodwil EEREEE - (165,640) - (33.977) - .
Interast income 67,360 103,214 16,373 13,620 15,601 18,997 i\
Gainsf (losses) on disposal '

of subsidiaries,

associated companies i

and investment securities 164,240 (1338) - - - - ‘
Profitdfoss) from aperations TR/ (58 1,097,490 202,700 (54,501) (288492} 21,727 203,383 ‘
Finance costs YEER (11,785) (33.516) (41,456) (46,273} (88,986) (114121) :

1,085,705 169,184 (95,957) (334,765) (67,259} 89,202

Share of profits of jointly ‘

controlled entities 8,468 - - - - -
Share of (losses}/profit of ElRE ]

associated companies DEER) /R (12,979) (6,628) 2,803 394 74 (255) ;
Profitloss) before taxation RHETER/ (58 1,081,194 162,556 (93,154} (334371) (67,185) 88,947 ‘
Taxation PR (23,092) (19,156} 3,152 (4,958) (5,469} (29,659} ‘
Profitfloss) after taxation BEEE/(58) 1058102 143400 (90,002) (339329) (72654) 59,288

|

Minarity interests (13,202) (29886) (9,985) (258) 700 . 674 \‘
Profitdloss) attributable ‘i

to shareholders 1,044,900 113,514 (99,988) (339,587} (71,954} 59962 |

Totak assets
Total liabifities (including

5,691,737 8,027,993 6,739,674 4,688,627 5,155,007 5,155,007

minority interests) ’/?] é% 2,009,703 4.145,071 2,906,655 2,433,700 4,895,334 4896334 |
Net assets EEFE 3,682,034 3,882,922 3,833,019 2,254.927 258,673 258,673 }}
Note: st -
(Y The proforma results of the Group for the year ended 315t March 1998 have been W EEEBRE-ANNEZ[=T—QUFEI2BEZEEENRS
prepared on a combined basis as if the acquisition of Legend (Beifing) Limited had HEERE - WRRMEEE (R ER AR - ANEFRN
been completed on 1st April, 1997. R—B5%A -
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